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Corporate Information
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Profiles of Directors

EE/ET

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Ping, aged 55, was appointed as Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company in October
2004. On 10 December 2008, Mr. Chen resigned as the Chief
Executive Officer but remains the Chairman and Executive Director
of the Company. He is the founder and executive director of the Tide
Time Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Tidetime Group”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. The
Tidetime Group is principally engaged in the educational publications,
remote education, as well as distribution and production of publication
and computer peripherals in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). Mr. Chen graduated from Anhui Mechanical College, the
PRC (formerly as Anhui Mechanical School), majoring in industrial
automation control. Prior to founding the Tidetime Group in 1990, Mr.
Chen acted as researcher in F Bit = A 5 BIBR IR AT and B H)F
RIEFFFEFT respectively. Mr. Chen is the brother-in-law of Ms. Ma Jian
Ying, the Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Pu Fuzhong, aged 61, was appointed as the Executive
Director and the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
December 2008. Mr. Pu graduated from the accounting department
of Beijing College of Accounting and Finance and is a Certified Public
Accountant in PRC. Mr. Pu had previously been appointed as the
finance manager, chief financial controller and director of various
companies in PRC. Mr. Pu is currently the deputy headmaster of
Beijing East Management College. He has extensive experience in the
areas of finance, accounting and corporate management.

Ms. Ma Jian Ying, aged 53, was appointed as Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company in October
2004. On 10 December 2008, Ms. Ma resigned as the Deputy Chief
Executive but remains the Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Ma
is the director of the Tidetime Group. She was a graduate-student of
the faculty of economics and management of the University of Tongji,
Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Ma has extensive business experience in the
PRC and has been an assistant researcher of A B B 75 2% & 7 3¢
0. Ms. Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David, aged 46, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company in May 2008. Mr. Chau is a
corporate finance practitioner with over 20 years’ experience in
IPO transactions, restructuring of PRC enterprises and takeover
transactions. He was formerly the head of the Merger and Acquisition
team of Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), and an ex-committee member of the Disciplinary Panel of
HKICPA.
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Profiles of Directors

EE/EMT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 53, was appointed as the Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 2008. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and is a fellow member of the HKICPA
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom. He has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 1982.

Mr. Lui Sai Wah, aged 55, was appointed as the Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in January 2009. Mr. Lui has over
20 years experience in management and electronic data transmission,
and is the founder and has been the managing director of Telequote
Data International Limited (“Telequote”) since 1989. Telequote is a
company engaged in the provision of international financial market
information and selective consumer data and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DVN (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lui had been
a registered Stock and Commodity Futures broker and dealer of the
United Kingdom, United States of the America and Hong Kong for the
period from 1977 to 1990.

Mr. Wong Siu Kang, aged 58, holds a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has extensive
experience in manufacturing and international trade. He had been
previously the managing director of a company engaged in the
manufacturing of electronic appliances. Mr. Wong is currently the
Managing Director of Nam Pei Hong Group, a traditional sum-yung
and dried seafood retail chain in Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITEHRES

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the financial year under review, the Group continued to face
severe competition in the market. Although the overall turnover of the
Group was increased by approximately 170% as compared to last
corresponding year, our two segments namely Multi-media Product
Trading and Broadcasting and Content Production recorded an
operating loss of approximately HK$2.4 million for the year, a slight
increase to the operating loss (excluding the non-recurring items such
as the compensation received from profit guarantee, gain on release
of obligation and waiver of payables and impairment loss on certain
broadcasting programmes) of HK$2.2 million in the last corresponding
year. Nevertheless, due to the rebound of the stock market, we have
recorded a HK$12.5 million realized and unrealized profit from the
holdings of our security portfolio. Also, we have significantly reduced
our overall distribution and administrative expenses to HK$7.6 million
this year. Thus, the Group has recorded a consolidated profit of
HK$7.5 million for this year, representing an increase of approximately
290% increase as compared to previous year.

Multi-media Product Trading:

The profitability of this business was not satisfactory although the
customer orders increased during the year. Due to severe competition,
the profit margin had been further squeezed. Gross profit has been
reduced to 1% from 3% as compared to prior year. To preserve
profitability, the Group is trying to source, and to offer more product
varieties to our customers. The management is in discussion with a
number of potential customers who are willing to place orders with
the Group. We also determined to seek for experienced personnel to
strengthen the sourcing network. At the same time, we are bargaining
with the suppliers for higher discounts for bulk orders. We are
confident that our profit margin as well as the overall profitability of this
segment can be improved in the near future.

Broadcasting and Content Production:

In view of continuing intense competition and price pressure caused
by similar products in the market, and due to the fact that the Group
has been reluctant to put in new resources, the turnover of this
business has further shrunk to HK$19,000. The management has
been considering to divest this non-performance business as soon as
possible.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITEHRES

PROSPECT

As mentioned in our interim report, we have been reviewing the
market condition and re-formulating our business strategy from time to
time when appropriate. We have therefore been considering to divest
the non-performing Broadcasting and Content Production business in
the near future. We have been trying to broaden the customer base
and the product variety in our Multi-media product trading business
to improve overall profitability. To further enhance shareholders’
value, the Group must diversify its business. During the year, we have
been seeking potential acquisition opportunities, both in the same
industry and in other new areas, which can bring positive value to the
shareholders. We hope that in the near future, we can make one or
two successful acquisitions which can improve our profitability in the
long run. Depending on market condition, we will consider different
ways to further strengthen our capital base for future development and
acquisitions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s current ratio was 3.0 (2009: 2.4),
with current assets of approximately HK$59 million (2009: HK$54
million) against current liabilities of approximately HK$19 million (2009:
HK$23 million). Cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$22
million (2009: HK$36 million). The Group’s gearing ratio was zero as at
31 March 2010 (2009: 0).

The Group’s working capital is mainly financed through internal
generated cashflows, borrowings and equity financing. There has not
been any change in the Group’s funding and treasury policies during
the year, and the Group continues to follow the practice of prudent
cash management.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a balance funding and treasury policies in cash and
financial management. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
(‘US dollars”). The Group also uses part of its idle cash to invest in
short-term securities. The Group’s financing requirements are regularly
reviewed by the management.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Foreign Exchange

The Group’s certain assets are principally denominated in US dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars is pegged to US dollars, thus foreign
exchange exposure on US dollars is considered as minimal. The
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group leased a motor vehicle under a finance
lease arrangement which was expired in May 2009. Save as disclosed
herein, the Group did not have any charges on assets or have any
material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a total of 29 employees (2009:
29). Employees’ remuneration packages are reviewed and determined

by reference to the market pay and individual performance.

The staff benefits include contributions to mandatory provident fund,
medical scheme and share option scheme.

8 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&[5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

RBEERMBER

R-TE—ZEFZA=Z+—H ALEZ R R
B3O0(ZZETAF 1 24) HARHEEHAS
#59,000,0007T ( — = Z N4 : % ¥54,000,000
JT) R E) & E R4 A7B#19,000,0007T (=&
T NF B #23,000,000T) cBe MRS EE
T8 B #) A&7%8#22,000,0007T ( Z T AF B
36,000,0007) c AEBR —ZE—FTF=A=+—
HNEABBLRAZT (ZEZTAFE  T)-

AEETIZFENHNELEZHERE BERK
ABREBNELEES - AKEZES RPERK
ERFALBEAEE UAEEEEEMET
EERTER-

Bt BUBUR

AEBERE KMBER ERIE MR
BRR-BE—REREZTENBE RETIIE
ZHEBER - AEETHEBOBAERSBRNE
HEsRE -EEEeE RN ASEZRER
sk o

S BE 32 B /R B

AEEZETEEITBUERTIE R BKHE
ST - BT RO IMNE BRI AR S - N E
b 8 SN S R

EEEARIRER

FA-AEERBR _ZZENFEABRZIRE
MELRHHERE - BRAREMWEEIN R=F
—EFEZA=1+—B AEEXETAEELR
FERMBEAIAAG-

ABDER

R-B—FE=F=1+—H AEEHF0X (=
TTAF:20%)BE -AEFRETISHIZAE
MEARBABRT REERE 2HWMAES -

BE®MNEEEES R BEG 8 RERER

&



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance practice.

In the opinion the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), the
Company has complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2010, except for certain deviation disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
to the Executive Directors and senior management who perform their
duties under the leadership of the Acting Chief Executive Officer.

The Board currently consists of four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The members of the Board held four regular meetings during the
year. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in establishing the
meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of items
in the agenda. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated
to the Directors normally three days in advance of board meetings or
board committee meetings (or such other period as agreed). Minutes
of board meetings and board committee meetings are taken by the
Company Secretary and are available for all board members.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRS

During the year, the Board held 4 meetings. The members of the
Board and the attendance of each member are as follows:

FRN EFFRTOREH - EFTEHEREKE
ZHELSEIAT

Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
B BHE SERLE
Executive Directors Chen Ping (Chairman) 4/4
WITES BRF (F/E)
Pu Fuzhong (Acting Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
BE R (FETHAAR)
Ma Jian Ying 4/4
B
Chau Shing Yim, David 4/4
B
Independent Non-executive Directors Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Note 1) 1/2
BYIERITES BUESE (fit1)
Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
2 B
Lui Sai Wah 4/4
=it
Wong Siu Kang (Note 2) 2/2
\mAR(Hit2)
Notes: Btz

1. Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph resigned as the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 8 September 2009.

2. Mr. Wong Siu Kang was appointed as the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 4 December 2009.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except that Ms. Ma Jian
Ying is the sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. Given the nature and business objective
of the Company, the Board has a balance of skill and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
list of Directors and their respective biographies are set out on pages
4 and 5 of this annual report respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

CHAIRMAN AND ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the Chairman and the Acting Chief Executive Officer is
separate and performed by two Directors.

Mr. Chen Ping, who is the Chairman of the Company, is responsible
for the overall formulation of business strategies and development of
the Group.

Mr. Pu Fuzhong, who is the Acting Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for managing the Group’s business and day-to-day
operation, and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the
achievement of its business objectives.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific
term. Moreover, all Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company, and their appointment will be reviewed when
they are due for re-election.

During the period from 8 September 2009 to 3 December 2009, the
Company had only two Independent Non-executive Directors and
Audit Committee members. On 4 December 2009, the Company
appointed the third Independent Non-executive Director and Audit
Committee member to meet the requirements under Rules 3.10 and
3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the

FMEES
FMEEeREN (RTFER)ARRZBEEN
SREBABZHHE fﬂMT&W§$‘éﬁ}%tﬁﬁ

Company’s policy for the remuneration of all Directors and senior =
management of the Company.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meeting. The FR -HFHZESRTRASZ FMZESKE
members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each EEKELFEWET
member are as follows:
Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
5= BHE SEBHE
Executive Director Chen Ping (Chairman) 2/2
WITES BRI (/)
Independent Non-executive Directors Lau Kwok Kuen 2/2
BYUEBMITES 24
Lui Sai Wah 2/2
&=t EE
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Note 1) 1/1
BUESE (fit1)
Wong Siu Kang (Note 2) 01
'BLR (Hit2)
Notes: BT

1. Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph resigned as the Remuneration Committee
member of the Company on 8 September 2009.

2. Mr. Wong Siu Kang was appointed as the Remuneration Committee
member of the Company on 4 December 2009.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended the Board to approve the remuneration packages of
the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2010.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The
duties and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in
the Code are performed by the Board collectively with no Director
being involved in fixing his/her own terms of appointment and no
Independent non-executive Director being involved in assessing
his/her own independence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration payable to the Company’s auditor,

Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, for audit and other services are
HK$428,000.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREE®
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing audited financial ERCECBE R ANEER KRB IERRE
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and FRAEBEEIESE W EEeigHE =8
providing advice and comments to the Board.
During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The FR BREZEESLCRITMILE ERZTESK
members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member BEEKEB ZHELENT
are as follows:
Attended/
Directors Eligible to attend
=) BHE EEEHE
Independent Non-executive Directors Lau Kwok Kuen (Chairman) 2/2
BIEITES 2R (FE)
Lui Sai Wah 2/2
o
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Note 1) 11
EEEE (M)
Wong Siu Kang (Note 2) 1/1
=R (Mit2)
Notes: Hat
1. Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph resigned as the Audit Committee member of the 1. BEEXER-_ZTENFAANBBEEARRAE

Company on 8 September 2009.

2. Mr. Wong Siu Kang was appointed as the Audit Committee member of
the Company on 4 December 2009.

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following
duties:

— reviewed with the management and the external auditor the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2009 and reviewed the unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 September
2009 with recommendation to the Board for approval;

—  received management’s report on the effective implementation
of internal control system covering financial, operational, and
procedural compliance; and

—  reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory
requirements.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Lau Kwok Kuen,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and
accounting and meets the requirements of rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts
of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cashflows
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the six months ended
30 September 2009 and for the year ended 31 March 2010, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The accounts for the reporting year have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system of the Group is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems and achievements of the Group’s objectives.

BMEM
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EEEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 16(c) to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 24.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: Nil) and the Board did not recommend the payment of dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26(a) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 112 to the annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 26(b) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, at 31 March 2010,
the Company cannot distribute any of its reserves to the shareholders
of the Company. However, the Company’s share premium account
of approximately HK$37,161,000 as at 31 March 2010 can be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

ARBEREFHE_T-TF=-A=+—A81Lt
FEZEEERESERKERMB]MS -
FEXK
ARRRZEBXRBGRTREER EXZH B AR
ZEBHN BB R EMEE16(0)

RERKRE

AEERE-T-TFZAS+—BULFEIE
BB BB 2 A Wk -

HE _T-ZF=A=1T—"HIEFEIERMF
HEE (ZEFNF 8) MEFELTEFIKR
NEE-Z-—ZTF=A=+—HILFERARS
(ZTTNF E)-

féfe

ARBZEERFRAZEHHTRNPBHREMN
26(a) °

AEEZNE BERREZE
HEH 15 -

TFEMBRE

IBE B 5

AEERNBEREMRFE 2 EEAREERA
EMEHNFHRE112E -

IR s

ARBZBARFER 2 BEHHITRNPBHREM
7226(0) °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers were 100% of the total turnover.
The aggregate purchases contributed to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were 100% of the Group’s cost of sales.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office during the year and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Chen Ping (Chairman)

Mr. Pu Fuzhong
(Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Ma Jian Ying

Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David
Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph # (resigned on 8 September 2009)
Mr. Lau Kwok Kuen #

Mr. Lui Sai Wah #

Mr. Wong Siu Kang # (Appointed on 4 December 2009)

# Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to bye-laws 101 and 110 of the Bye-laws, the Directors who
are retiring by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting are
Mr. Chen Ping, Mr. Chau Shing Yim, David and Mr. Wong Siu Kang,
who being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as regards their independence
to the Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors is independent to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
entered into any service agreements with any members of the Group
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements, no contract
or arrangement entered into by any member of the Group subsisting
as at 31 March 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests of the Directors and their
respective associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, (the “SFO”)), as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long Positions in the shares of the Company

ES2BRBEEN

FR-BERNARBEERRBFRGBEE
E2EFRAKE ZEMKE QBRI EMRS
BH(R—FRAERIEEIIR -FARNEE
OEERERRIN TLARIEZRIEE LB -

EENERGHRBERZ 2 ER

BRI TS E M 33 IREE SN - AR BEMA AR
BRI ZEHNILHFR_"T-FTF=A=1+—
BIATFE-

EEvEsER

RIE-ZTF=A=+—H BFEFLKERH
ZHMEBEATRARARREBEEE (EEREE
ErREEGRD ([EFEHREED ) EXVEL) 2
P& tn K A8 BA R (0 oh B 7 1R A5 A8 5 I R R 161 55 352
GREARBRLAFE 2B LMASARE L
RABFETEFRINFETRAMGALQF
REBBMERIGMABERAR ([BRAT]) 2 Emin
T

ROABARBFZHFR

Number of shares

held as at Approximate
Name of Director Capacity 31 March 2010 % of holding
R=-ZE—ZF=H=+-—H BB
EEHE g @% FrsRGEE BABE D
Mr. Chen Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 110,010,000 10.99%
(Note)
BRE A& PSR B RS (Hiat)
Mr. Lui Sai Wah Beneficial owner 1,212,000 0.12%
& i EE S A XA A
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Note:

Such shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tidetime”) which
was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company), 5% by Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr.
Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying (Executive Director of the Company and
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (former Executive
Director of the Company) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (former Executive Director
of the Company). Mr. Chen Ping and Ms. Ma Jianhua were deemed to be
interested in such shares by virture of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or their respective associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 March 2010.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or their spouse or children under age of 18 years
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, or had
exercised such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
movements in the Company’s share options during the year to
subscribe for shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company granted under the share option scheme are set out in Note
27(a) to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
share option schemes represents approximately 0.06% (Outstanding
options as at 31.3.2010 are 596,112 and capital as at 31.3.2010 is
1,000,861,680 shares) of the issued share capital of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, so far as are known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the shareholders (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company whom'’s interests
were disclosed in page 17 of this annual report) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, or had otherwise notified the
Company were as follows:

FERR

R-E-2E=A=+-A RALTEENRE
BEBA S FA - A TIRR (AR 58 Bl E 515
BABBI - ERERAEREI7TAHRE) XA
RE2 ) RARBE AN G AR IR 5 R
e A 2 AR 2 R 50 D) 250361 T
BB EREEFTeERD BINBNARTR
KA E AR B BT A% K b E 2 s
Sk

Number of shares held
as at 31 March 2010
R=-B-ZF=A=+-—H
BENRGHE

Approximate

Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity Long position % of holding
TERREH 514 e BERBEDL
Tidetime (Note) Corporation 110,010,000 10.99
RiE (M) A

Ms. Ma Jianhua Family 110,010,000 10.99
BRELL U

Ng Cheuk Fai Beneficial Interest 91,352,393 9.13
REH BamiEm

Kam Lap Sing Kelvin Beneficial Interest 89,300,595 8.92
B BamiEm

Note: G

Such shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tidetime”) which
was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company), 5% by Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr.
Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying (Executive Director of the Company and
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (former Executive
Director of the Company) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (former Executive Director
of the Company). Mr. Chen Ping and Ms. Ma Jianhua were deemed to be
interested in such shares by virture of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 March 2010.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 March 2010.

LITIGATIONS

As disclosed in the annual report in previous years, on 10 July 2006, a
legal action for damages of approximately HK$76,862,000 for breach
of agreements was brought against the Company by four independent
third parties. Details of the legal action were set out in Note 32 to the
financial statements

On 5 May 2010, an application for striking out the Plaintiffs’ claim was
made. The application was heard on 14 June 2010 and 13 July 2010.
The striking out application can be determined by end of September
2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lau Kwok Kuen, Mr.
Lui Sai Wah and Mr. Wong Siu Kang, has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices during the
year ended 31 March 20010 are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 9 to 14 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules and, after specific enquiry, all Directors of the
Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2010.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan
as auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 March 2011.

By Order of the Board
Pu Fuzhong
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 July 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tidetime
Sun (Group) Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 24 to 111,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 32 to the
financial statements. The Company is the 1st defendant for alleged
breach of agreements in respect of the sale of shares in the share
capital of TV Viagens (Macau), S.A.R.L. between the Plaintiffs and the
Company’s former wholly-owned subsidiary (the 2nd defendant). The
Plaintiffs sought damages of approximately HK$76,862,000 or such
an amount as the court may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or
other relief, from the Company. Based on legal advice after application
for striking out the Plaintiffs’ claim, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Company has a very good chance of successfully
striking out the case. Hence, the claim would not result in losses to
the Company. The directors of the Company consider the allegations
to be without merit and too remote to be held against the Company,
and no provision for any liability that may result has been made in the
financial statements.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 14 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 &= —

—FF=ZA=F—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( JA7# ’#WJTE)

2010 2009
—E-=F —TENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT T BT T
Turnover R 4 74,750 27,988
Cost of sales S5 & P AR (74,023) (25,750)
Gross profit EF 727 2,238
Other revenue, other income and H e - EAbUA K
gains, net Y Al VR 'R 5] 15,719 30,722
Distribution costs 5 $H PR (902) (1,044)
Administrative expenses TBAX (6,694) (20,503)
Impairment loss on broadcasting B ET B R EEE
programmes 18 - (9,917)
Reversal of impairment loss on B SR ERR 2
trade receivables VEREY E=EEgEl 20(b) - 2,059
Profit from operations R RF 8,850 3,555
Finance costs A& KA 6 (5) (1,618)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity — FE {4 2k [F] 3% 4 & 52 ~ #5418 17 (87) —
Profit before taxation BR Bt Az F 7 8,758 1,937
Income tax Fris#t 8 (1,185) -
Profit for the year R E R F 7,573 1,937
Attributable to: FE1h
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERTFEA 11 7,573 1,937
Minority interests DAL R RERS _ 5
Profit for the year REE T 7,573 1,937
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic =N HKO0.76 cents 1L HK0.34 cents 7#1ll

The notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

HB1D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AREZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA % 51/{&)

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt BT BT
Profit for the year R FEEF 7,573 1,937
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HfthZ2 M (&iE) W
Currency translation differences arising ~ #BE /S INER 2 B 53R %
on translation of financial statements EACENZERE
of foreign operations (214) 61)
Available-for-sale financial assets: A EMBEE:
net movement in fair value reserve NEEFEZZEFE 13 - 1,577
Other comprehensive FREMZE (FE) WE
(loss)/income for the year (214) 1,516
Total comprehensive income FREEMWEHLEE
for the year 7,359 3,453
Total comprehensive income BiEEENRARE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RABIERTFAA 7,359 3,453
Minority interests DHRR R - -
7,359 3,453
The Notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these EREITEZHEBRZS B RE 2 —

consolidated financial statements. EB45 ©
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 March 2010 R —ZE—ZFF=H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ETIE)

2010 2009
—E-2F —TENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Kz BEFT BEFT BT T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER YR 15 712 1,380
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R IR HIEEE 7 %S 17 61 -
773 1,380
Current assets REEE
Broadcasting programmes EHEETE 18 - -
Trading securities EERA 19 16,620 10,223
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H e W BR 5K 20 19,603 7,720
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEER 21 22,420 36,484
58,643 54,427
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H At FE 15 BR K 22 18,168 23,064
Obligation under a finance lease BT E iR 23 - 39
Current tax payable B EA P& 5 A5 TE 25 1,185 -
19,353 23,103
Net current assets REBEEFE 39,290 31,324
Total assets less current liabilities %% & # B & & 40,063 32,704
NET ASSETS EEFE 40,063 32,704
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR R
Share capital [N 26(b) 10,009 10,009
Reserves i 30,054 22,695
Total equity attributable to equity A FEZIFEA
holders of the Company L EREEE 40,063 32,704
Minority interests DERREE - =
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 40,063 32,704

The financial statements on pages 24 to 111 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2010.

The notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Pu Fuzhong
Director
BE P
3
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 March 2010 R —ZE—ZFF=H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA % 51/{&)
2010 2009
—E-F —EENFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
i3 BT T EBEFT BT BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIEE 16 29,613 =
Amount due from a jointly JRE Ui 2 [ 45 6 B RS ZUE
controlled entity 17 148 -
29,761 -
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EWRER 20 8,229 10,162
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKBFEEEIER 21 2,153 36,112
10,382 46,274
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A FE T BRSK 22 408 3,153
Net current assets REBEEFE 9,974 43,121
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAEEE 39,735 43,121
NET ASSETS BEERE 39,735 43,121
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR & 26
Share capital %N 10,009 10,009
Reserves & 29,726 33,112
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 39,735 43,121

The financial statements on pages 24 to 111 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2010.

The notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Pu Fuzhong

Director
BEh
2

FURIMBEZHBEREN _ZE—ZFF A+
Hi&EE e g W IR RT3

Ma Jian Ying
Director
BE®

EF

FREI1EZMNEFERNZET RS2 —35 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ETIE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADARBRA AR

Share
capital

Bx
HK$000

E¥T

Share  Contributed
premium surplus

RitiR
HKS 000
EETL

RARH
HKS 000
ARTT

Exchange
reserve

Eiff
HKS 000
A¥TT

Share  Convertible
option notes
reserve reserve
ik
2Bk
HK$ 000
8T

Capital
reserve

BARf
HKS 000
EETT

BREGS
HKS 000
ARTT

Fair value
reserve

LYERR
HKS 000
b

Accumulated
losses

2HER
HKS000
BETT

Sub-Total

I\ %1-
HKS 000
ARTT

Minority
interests

Y
RREs
HK$ 000
A8Tr

Total

i
HKS 000
kit

At 1 Aprl 2008
RZFF\FBA-A

Profit for the year
AEERT
Other comprehensive
income/(loss)
Ht2ERE/ (F8)
Currency translation differences
arising on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations
BEBNEH BBRREE
EiEH
Available-for-sale financial assets:
At ERKEE
net movement in fair
value reserve (Note 13/
ATEREEDIE Hi15)

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year

EndmuE/ (B8

Transactions with owners
AEBANR A
Issue of shares
¥k
Transaction cost related
to issue of shares
BEETRR R EHA
Equity-settied share-hased
transactions
BAESRHR S
Forfeiture of share options
R
Redemption of convertible notes
BETARZE
Release of reserve®

BRER

Total transactions with owners

RERANRZAE

28  Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=F5 )¢ (£ E ) ER QA

5,560

13,710 84,798

(876

3490 7 6,074

(1577)

(108,175)

3,511

351

1,677

1,937

1,987

1,617

1,987

1,517

1,517

1,937

3,453

3,453

4,449

= (32) -

(2.044)

(3,830

20

3,830

4,449

23,451 =

(6,074

3,850

25,740

25,740




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AR #%I1E)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARREREE AR
Share  Convertible
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Capital option notes  Fair value Accumulated Minority
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-Total interests Total
TaR |
ke RHEE EEER ENRE EARE ERERE FERE OVERE  EHE8 Mt RREE it
HKS000  HKSO0O  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOO  HKSUOO.  HKSO0O  HKSOOD  HKSOMD  HKSOMD
AFr AT BEFr  A¥Fr AEFr BT A¥Fr A¥Tr BETr BEir B¥ir BETn
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009
RZEEAE=A=1-BEK
ZEENEMA-A 10,009 37,161 84,798 (437) 3,490 I - - (102388 32,704 - 32,704
Profit for the year
AEERA - - - - - - - - 7573 7573 - 7,573
Other comprehensive loss
Hb2EEE
Currency translation differences
arising on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations
BERNEB MBRREEL
EiZE = - - (214) - - - - - (214) - (214)
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year
ER2EUE/ (B8) - - - (214 - - - - 7,573 7359 - 7,359
Transactions with owners
HERANRS
Eorfeiture of share options
R RE - - - - - (33) - - 3 - - -
Total transactions with owners
HERANRZEH - - - - - (33) - - 3 - - -
At 31 March 2010
RZE-%5=F=1-A 10,009 31,161 84,798 (651) 3,490 38 - - (94782 40,063 - 40,063

losses (Note 24).

The notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Since the convertible notes were fully redeemed, the equity component
was therefore released and the reserve was transferred to accumulated

#15 o

Y BREEEEL RS ARG a0 I
FEEEREEZGTER (Hit24)

FREMBZHEBRZEFREMBRE 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &= —

—FF=ZA=F—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( JA7# ’F§§|JTE)

2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 BT T B F T
Operating activities mEEK
Profit before taxation B 5 A Al 8,758 1,937
Adjustments for: MUATIEBELFHE :
Depreciation e 606 812
Amortisation of broadcasting B &R B 2
programmes 18 - 6,822
Impairment loss/(reversal of BERBE CREEE
impairment loss) on trade #Bl) 2 & 5 FE R K
receivables 20(b) 152 (2,059)
Impairment loss on broadcasting EREETE 2 mEEE
programmes 18 - 9,917
Share of loss of a jointly FE(R HEESIE 88 2 B8
controlled entity 87 -
Dividend income A& B A (106) (160)
Finance costs & B AN 5 1,618
Interest income A B A (4) (203)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEMSE HEREZEZ
plant and equipment (Yrz= )/Eﬂ% (109) 245
Net realised and unrealised BHREFIER
(gain)/loss on trading securities AEH (W)
ERFHE (12,490) 5,324
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HENHEEMFEEE
financial assets E518 13 - 2,670
Loss on redemption of B #mREEEE
convertible notes - 1,987
Gain on release of obligation P BUE % B 6 1 s SR 1%
upon lapse of production and fERAEBEEZ WA
broadcasting agreement - (6,971)
Gain on waiver of payables P EMNERERZWA (110) (8,556)
Equity-settled share-based payment BRAGEERND R ZHFRZ 7(a) - 84
Operating (loss)/profit before RETEEESEFHA 2
changes in working capital K (FE) RF (3,211) 13,467
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other & 5 & H {th B I BR X
receivables (&) w (12,035) 9,026
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 I H th fE 5 BR 50k (4,786) (2,599)
Net cash (used in)/generated from Q& XK (FH) EEZ
operating activities ReFE (20,032) 19,894
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA % 51/{&)
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt B F T BT T

Investing activities REEE
Expenditure on broadcasting ERHEfTE 2R

programmes - (595)
Payment for the purchase of property, TIEEME  HESREE

plant and equipment (19) (401)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEMSE HEREZHEZ

plant and equipment B 1S #18 200 =
Proceeds from sale of trading securities & B & &% < FT 558 11,641 3,822
Proceeds on sale of available-for-sale HENHEENFEEE L

financial assets B 1S 18 - 462
Payment for purchase of TNEEEERS

trading securities (5,548) (19,031)
Payment for purchase of SNEEAHEEMBEE

available-for-sale financial assets - (2,040)
Payment for purchase of a subsidiary Y E AT 29(a) (1) =
Increase in amount due from JE M R 422 1) B8 SR IR 3 N

a jointly controlled entity (148) -
Dividend received Bl & 106 160
Interest received B U A B 4 203
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEHEE (FEH)Z

investing activities HeFE 6,235 (17,420)
Financing activities AEEE
Capital element of finance lease ENpEREERE 2

rentals paid =N (39) (234)
Finance costs paid EATEE KA = (494)
Interest element of finance lease ENmERERS 2

rentals paid MBS (5) (29)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITREMEHIE - 27,900
Payment for redemption of AT R R E R

convertible notes 2 FIE - (25,354)
Net cash (used in)/generated from METH (FA) EEZ

financing activities HEFHE (44) 1,789
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRHESEEEBEZ

and cash equivalents OCRA) /1 hniFEE (13,841) 4,263
Cash and cash equivalents FHUzReRkRREEHEER

at beginning of the year 36,484 32,194
Effect of foreign exchange EREEH s ¥E

rate changes (223) 27
Cash and cash equivalents FERZASRRESEHEER

at end of the year 21 22,420 36,484

The notes on pages 32 to 111 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FEREMBEZHEBRZEFEMBRE 2 —
B0
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

32

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 30
October 1992 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
to the annual report. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 16(c).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied
the following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(‘HKAS”), amendments, Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations (‘HK
(IFRIC) — Int”) and new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
(Amendments) 2008, except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
(Amendments) 2009 in relation to the amendment

to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

HKAS 1 (Revised Presentation of Financial Statements

2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised Borrowing Costs
2007)

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27  Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&[5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

—REHR

mEBK (EE)ERAF([ARE]R
—hAZF+AS+REERERBERE
—AN\—ERREEMR T AEH AR D
A ERGREERERDHARAT (B
S 1) EAR T o

ARARAE—HEREERAR AR R ZEM
MEERETELEMB MU R FR[AAE
Bl —fhEE AT EMBRARZEEER
M EE16(C) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 2 Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial
(Amendment) Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives
HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Transfer of Assets from Customers

HK(FRIC) - Int 16

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented
except those information set out below on the significant
changes in accounting policies for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs
are summarised as follows (New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only):

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) “Presentation of Financial
Statements”

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007), details
of changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expense in a
revised statement of changes in equity. All other terms of income
and expense are presented in the income statement, if they are
recognised as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise
in a new primary statement, the statement of comprehensive
income. In addition, the ‘Cash flow statement’ was renamed
as the ‘Statement of cash flows’. Corresponding amounts have
been restated to conform to the new presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income
and expense or net assets for any period presented.

A REBTEBUBRELER
(BB BHREEANEE (&)

BEMBREENE2R BEEEREH
(BF%)
BEMBREENETR EMBIAZRE
(BFT%)

BEMBREENER LENE
Bk (ARpBHRE2E RAATETIAR

ZE®) —REZW
RE R G R F30%:
(BF%)

AR (ARMBERERE ZTPOHS
ZE®) —RES13H

BE (ARpBHRE2E RERLEHS
ZE®) —RES15H

B (ARMBEREEE  WHRIMELELD
ZE®) —RES6H FRE

BE (ARMBHRE2E NEFPBRAE
ZE®) —RES8H

R R ERI RN B REENH ARG
=T EARE M 1 & 5T BAM A9 2648 S RS AR 1O
RAERZINAATEERTE HEATHRE
EEZFVHHREARRNBBEASHEK
BESFTHRNS A BRRNERNEE MR
She EtL - BAEHATHIEE -

RNZ S LN REIER] BB MR E £
MEBRXEMENT GHERREETES
MHRELENRIRR 25 MKE)
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[ HR 225 ]
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BEMBPARZTEDFAZIREEET =
FEBR A FTAEMIRA R HIHB 0 E
REAHBERZ —BH BREKEERAZ
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flow statement | 8 24 [ Statement of cash
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

34

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance. The application of
the HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
reportable segments. In addition, there are no changes in the
basis of measurement of segment revenue, segment profit or
loss, segment assets and segment liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The amendments
also expand and amend the disclosures required in relation
to liquidity risk. The Group has not provided comparative
information for the expanded disclosures in accordance with
the transitional provision set out in the amendments. However,
apart from those expanded disclosures in Note 30(b)(5), the
adoption of such amendments has not resulted in any other
additional disclosures in respect of other financial instruments
as their carrying values as at 31 March 2010 are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&[5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for trading securities, which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 34.

The Group has not early applied any new standard,
amendment or interpretation that has been issued but is not
yet effective for the current accounting period (see Note 36).

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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3.

36

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interests.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in consolidated income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority
interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Amounts due from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet
depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is shown separately
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the
establishment of a corporation, partnership or other entity
in which the Group has an interest. A joint venture is a
contractual arrangement whereby the Group and one or
more of other parties undertake an economic activity that
is subject to joint control, which is the contractually agreed
sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only
when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating
to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for
using the equity method, whereby the investment is initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets of the
jointly controlled entity, unless it is classified as held for sale
or included in a disposal group held for sale. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly
controlled entity for the year, including any impairment loss
on goodwill relating to the investment in jointly controlled
entity recognised for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the jointly controlled
entity’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals to or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. The interest in a jointly controlled
entity is the carrying amount of the investment in the jointly
controlled entity under the equity method together with
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity. After
the Group’s interest is reduced to zero, additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Jointly controlled entity (Continuead)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from the Group’s
transactions with the jointly controlled entity are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s relevant interests in the jointly
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss for
the impairment (see Note 3(i)(i)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investment in
jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Financial assets

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date when the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially measured
at fair value plus, in the case of the investments other than
trading securities, transaction costs. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transactions costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity are
further categorised into the following classifications for the
measurement after initial recognition.

(i) Trading securities

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as trading securities included in current assets
and are stated in the balance sheet at fair value. A
financial assets is classified in this category, if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-
term. Any attributable transaction costs and gain or
loss on the fair value changes of trading securities are
recognised in consolidated income statement.

3. EEEREE(#E)

(d)

(e)

HEZEGER (&)

AEEEARZHERETISELEZ
RER G BB AREER KR
HIEB L ARER SR T AL R
ZABREETACEREELTR
B FEUERT - BB R B m R
RERER (RS0 °

RARRZEERBRA  RHARZEH
BRZIRE DR AR R E R R E R
BRORROFEHEDEARELE (LA
DRRFBIERE ZHEER) -

MBEEE

—RUBEENBARLEER S A
R—RGABARAAGEB AR L EZ
BEZR- ﬁﬂlﬁﬁgw%m&é
&éﬂ*ﬁﬂ?@m XBRAGHE - R
B B8 2 ) e L EHE ) B B R B LASN 2 B
Wé?ﬁ%mﬁaéﬁ Zk SV ANl
BRIARTE -

() EBEEF

FIEEENIESFREDB/ABREE
MBEENEEREFES YREER
BERZAFETIE  WEARBEE
ETZENREHEE AIFAL

*ﬁwﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ*%ﬁ$uﬁﬁ
BREs N FHEZB M WEKEER
MU s R ER -

Annual Report 2010 & 39



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

3.

40

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Financial assets (Continued)
(ij) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to a
debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise mainly amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Investment in debt securities with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the Company has
the position intention and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity investments, which are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment losses, if any.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 3(i)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
consolidated income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation, except leasehold improvements, is calculated
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives at
the rate of 20% per annum. Leasehold improvements is
amortised over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more than five
years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Broadcasting programmes

Broadcasting programmes are stated at cost less amounts
expensed and any impairment losses considered by the
management. Cost comprises direct expenditure and an
appropriate portion of production overheads. The cost
of the broadcasting programmes is expensed by way of
amortisation on systematic allocation of the depreciable
amount of the broadcasting programmes over their
estimated useful lives of not more than twelve months from
the date when the broadcasting programmes are available
for use. Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Company
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the assets to the Company. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continueq)

()

(i)

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in
the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. The corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, on the finance leases are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property, plant
and equipment, except for those properties held to
earn rental income which are classified as investment
properties in the consolidated balance sheet.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated and
recognised in the same manner as the depreciation
and impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment as set out in Note 3(i)(ii), except for the
estimated useful lives cannot exceed the relevant lease
terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Operating leases

Where the Company is the lessee, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the
Company is the lessor, assets leased by the Company
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and trade and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see Note 3(i)(ii)) and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

[f any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
are not reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and trade and other receivables
(Continued)

—  For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

— For investment in jointly controlled entity
recognised using the equity method (see
Note 3(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with Note 3(i)(ii) below. The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with Note (i) below.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses on bad and doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale);

— intangible assets; and

- goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continueq)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

)]

Impairment of assets (Continueq)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost less any
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except
for the following receivables:

— interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost less any
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts;
and

—  short term receivables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount less any
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.
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3.

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities (if any)
measured in accordance with Note 3(o)(i), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
for the following payables:

—  short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

— interest free loans from related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the income statement for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in consolidated income statement except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continueq)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in consolidated income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continueqd)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in consolidated income
statement over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 3(o)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in consolidated income statement as follows:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from the production of broadcasting
programme

Revenue arising from the production of broadcasting
programme is recognised when production is
completed and the master copy is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the master
copy and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises which
is taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established prior to the balance sheet date.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except when
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in exchange reserve in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the fair value reserve in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iiij) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

M

(i)

)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately as a component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to the profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

3. EEEREE(#E)

(r)

BEAL

RAFBEREMS AT ALERES
AEBZBBEAL:

(0

(i

)

(iv)

(vi)

MAEMALTRAEZLEEE R
BHZ RPN ARG AEBHEA
SEZHBREERREBEAY
27 EEMATHREEAE
B 4

AEERGHEA LI HREZES:

BRALRAKREZBERRHA
SERBETZAZERE:

BERALRAAEERERRAZE
ZEEAR UB/ZALTZEER
B X A TS HLRE S
E-WN-Z - PA/NCTE

BERAALRE(NVEMAALZER
MBR X AR KEZESI
BERFEZRA K

AMALANAEERAELMED
FI#IR B 2 F 28 AROBE B AT RIS

£l

BAZERZABEERSEAEZAL
EEZARNEANSHEEYERTE
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3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s chief operating decision makers for the purposes
of allocating recourses to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of the products and services, the nature of
the production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

TURNOVER

The Group is principally engaged in the media-related business,
including broadcasting and multi-media product trading
business.

Turnover represents income from broadcasting business and
sales value of multi-media products sold to customers. The
amount of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as
follows:

3. EESRBE(#E)

(s) AEHRE

MES PR BREF 2B 55 BT
B2 DENERAEEEALS
IR E SRR AT
BMAALE X BEPRRERE B
EHi o

AMBHREM S BHEZLENEE
TeAHEE BIFZDBEBRUL
Bt BABRUERMRBGEES -
EERFUE FEPRANMEE 2
Em sk EERGNITAREERRNMKE
B WENTEZENEE 0BG it
REBD 51 - BRI FIAR Bt &

EEBREREEBEZBARATFHES K
RBEMZHEE FARRRERRZNE
IR

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TThF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Broadcasting business & 5 2 75 19 5,707
Multi-media product trading business ZIHREEMBEB XS 74,731 22 281
74,750 27,988
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5. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. Htz HaWARERFE
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T BT
Other revenue H i U 2%
Interest income from bank deposits IRITFERZF B WA 4 200
Interest income from others REEMIAR 2 FEHA - 3
Dividend income from listed securities FAREHZREKA 106 160
Sundry income H b g A 293 832
403 1,195
Other income and gains, net Hab g A K= F HEE
Gain on release of obligation upon lapse of 7 BLE K & 1 175 55 55 3014 fif
production and broadcasting agreement RBEBE T WS - 6,971
Net realised gain on trading securities BHZE 2 BRI FEE 4,460 =
Unrealised gain on trading securities BHTE 2 REIH W 8,030 =
Gain on waiver of payables e FE AR 2 e 110 8,556
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  HaE R E 2 W
equipment 109 -
Bad debt recovery, net* RIZER U B %58 1,800 =
Reversal of impairment loss on EiEE B 2 R EEEEE
broadcasting programmes 807 -
Compensation received — income arising B WELZ {8 — B —EHE QA 7
from profit guarantee to a subsidiary B 2 B FREBEMEEZ
(Note 33(a)) WA (K1:233(a)) - 14,000
15,316 29,627
15,719 30,722
Note™: The net amount of bad debt recovery is after deduction of debt Bt : RIBERNEDERED B EEBIFENER-

collection costs.
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RMEMK
2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EBMTF T BT T
Interest on convertible notes AR EE 2 F B - 1,689
Finance charges on obligation under a MEREREY
finance lease BLE B 5 29
5 1,618
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BR®AEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEADEMNEIEG(5FA) TH&1\:
2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BIRA
remuneration) (BREEH2)
Contributions to defined contribution TE RE M FURRET B
retirement plans 2R 121 163
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR 75 4 B % 1
AR - 84
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENEMER 2,771 4,302
2,892 4,549
60 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=F5 ¢ (£ E ) ER QA
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7. BRBADRA (&)
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
(b) Other items (b) HAIEH
Depreciation e
— owned assets —BEEE 606 580
— leased asset —HEEE - 232
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNEE (M) /118 R 58 (43) 116
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B & 428 400
Operating lease charges: REHELH
minimum lease payments in MERE 2 xEHRE
respect of property rentals 990 1,250
Cost of inventories FE KA 74,023 25,750
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE HERZEZ
and equipment 518 - 245
Loss on redemption of convertible ERrBmRREEE
notes (Note 24) (FtzE24) - 1,987
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale TENHEENBEEZ
financial assets &8 - 4,247
Net realised loss on trading securities BEZ5 2 BEEEI8THE - 1,591
Unrealised loss on trading securities BERBHF ABEEE - 3,733
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRR 2 REEE 152 -
8. INCOME TAX 8. Fi8H
For the year ended 31 March 2010, taxation on Hong Kong HE_Z—ZTF=A=1T—HILEFE &S
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits kS fRTﬁE B E b 5t FE AR T i Al A B 2
for the year at the rate of 16.5% after deducting accumulated 16.5%+1 & - WE R E 2 2T HiTEEE - 8
tax losses brought forward. For the year ended 31 March 2009, 2T NF=ZA=+—HIEFE BARAX
no provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group SEATWEGFERT RN HBEE
companies had either no estimated assessable profits or had R HIAEE R BIER AT E 2 G5 ER
accumulated tax losses brought forward to offset the current i m A - B AR B ARG -

year’s estimated assessable profits.

No provision for overseas taxation has been made as the HREEEZEZZT—ZER_ZFTTNLF=H
overseas subsidiaries have no estimated assessable profits = +—HIFEBINNBRRIEEMB A
arising from their jurisdictions during the years ended 31 March M & N 4R (i AT B ER B v ) - AR A 4 D A
2010 and 2009. TR -
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8. INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. Fr8% (#&)

62

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) FmEWEETAZTIAE
2010 2009
—E-EfF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBEMF T
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax ~ BNHAFR 18 —H B FIBH 1,185 -

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

(b) BIEXHEREABRAE ZEFIER

profit at applicable tax rates: HERWMT :
2010 2009
—z-25 —EENF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BMT T BT T
Profit before taxation B 5 B Y4 A1) 8,758 1,937
Notional tax on profit before taxation, B &% Bl i Fl < 4 3%

calculated at the applicable rate of TRIB R A B R 25%T &

25% (2009: 25%) —ZEENF:25%) 2,189 484
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERHBRAZHRIEZE (376) (7,096)
Tax effect of non-deductible AP E 2 B8

expenses 191 4,286
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERAREABIEEE 2

not recognised 2 773 1,062
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ~ BE AMERS AT IBEEIE 2

previously not recognised Bz 2 (860) (69)
Effect of different taxation rates HEMBRGa AR TRBE 2

used in other tax jurisdictions e (732) 1,333
Actual tax expense BERBIES 1,185 —
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2010

9. EEME

RIETERTEHIFE161EIREZESE
(U N

BE-®-—FF=A=t+-HLFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2010
fees in kind contributions Total
e RER BHhctE8 —Z2-2F
EEHe BYEF =% Ht
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BYEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Executive directors HITES
Chen Ping R F - 240 9 249
Ma Jian Ying BER - 180 9 189
Chau Shing Yim, David EEX - 348 12 360
Pu Fuzhong HE - 136 - 136
Independent BYEHITES
non-executive directors
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph HiEDE
(resigned on 08.09.2009) (RZEENEF
NANBEE) 53 - - 53
Lau Kwok Kuen ZIpE 120 - - 120
Lui Sai Wah At 120 - - 120
Wong Siu Kang BLR
(appointed on 04.12.2009) (R=EENEF
T AMNBEERT) 39 - - 39
332 904 30 1,266
Note: Bt -

(i) For the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Company or as a compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

() BEZ-—ZER_TEAF=A=+—H
LFEE AEETEINMETEMNES
TER RS A E DA £ B B 52 B) X B
BAEE-BE—_T-ZTER_FTTNF=A
St HUEFE ITEEFReAAERL

Hif < -
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—FF=ZA=F—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

9. ESXM= (&)

Year ended 31 March 2009 BHE_ZZNF=ZA=+—HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2009
fees in kind  contributions Total
e 2R RikztE —ZTAE
EEHe EMiEF HX Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T BEF T BEF T
Executive directors HITES
Chen Ping B - 930 10 940
Ma Jian Ying BER - 660 10 670
Walter Stasyshyn Walter Stasyshyn
(resigned on 30.07.2008) (RZZENEF
+A=+H#T) - 109 = 109
Man Ming (resigned on 30.07.2008) X 8 (R=ZZT)\4F
+A=+H#T) - - - -
Chau Shing Yim, David FERX (R=ZETN\F
(appointed on 01.05.2008) FA—BEZE) - 330 - 330
Pu Fuzhong BEHR (RZTTN\F
(appointed on 10.12.2008) +-Bt+HEZRE) - 57 = 57
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Chu Yu Lin, David K (RZEENF
(resigned on 06.10.2008) +ARBEME) 62 = = 62
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph HiEE 120 - - 120
Deng Jordan Z. BEin (R=_ETNF
(resigned on 06.10.2008) +ARBEME) 62 = = 62
Lau Kwok Kuen 2IFE (R ST N\F
(appointed on 29.10.2008) TAZTNABEZE) 51 = = 51
Lui Sai Wah BtE (R=TTHhF
(appointed on 08.01.2009) —ANBEZT) 28 = - 28
323 2,086 20 2,429
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2009:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2009: two) individuals are as follows:

10. EEH AL

hEREHFALTF WE(ZZTTAF:
FIRES H@ﬂiEEAWE9?&EMEE
“ETNF MB)ATZMERENT

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments & M E b 3N 1,181 1,138
Equity-settled share-based payment J«/(HXZIS%QC R A AT R - 51
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 32 24
1,213 1,213

The emoluments of three (2009: two) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

=% (ZTTAF  ME)REHALZEE
AFLATRE :

2010 2009

—E-FF —ZEThF

Number of Number of

individual individual

A& AZ

Nil — HK$1,000,000 BT T = 8%1,000,0007T 3 2
For the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no emoluments HE_Z-—ZFR_ZZTNF=A=1T—H

were paid by the Group to any of the five highest individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a loss of HK$3,386,000 (2009:
HK$4,823,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

FE: $$l1ﬁ§iﬁ@ﬂ@%€cﬁ£{ﬁﬂ%
SEFAL ERBENMAXEMARERD
R SBERAE -

1M1, RAFERZFEEAEERF
ARREEFEARBMEERETNBEE
1878 #3,386,000c (ZZEZ L F | B

4,823,0007T) ' ZBEE R AR R B 15
ERRIE o
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

66

(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$7,573,000 (2009: HK$1,937,000) and the
weighted average of 1,000,861,000 ordinary shares (2009:
563,958,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated

12. ERER

(a)

BREXER

BREARAFTREARARERSFTE A
FE (RN B % FI7E#7,573,0007T (==
TNE B 1,937,000 ) R FERE B
7 3% 18 %I04 F 39 201,000,861,000%

—Z T A4 : 563,958,0000% & i A% )
FTE - L @RI T EIR T Y5 A

as follows: =
2010 2009
—g-%F —FENF
Number Number
of shares of shares
B & E R EE
‘000 ‘000
FR FHR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April REA—HZBEBETEBR 1,000,861 556,037
Effect of shares issued on Placing HE_ZTZThF=-A=+—8
during the year ended I ERESFIBEE BT
31 March 2009 I 1p 2 2 - 7,921
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—H 2 EBRK
shares at 31 March IntE 8 1,000,861 563,958
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BEREBRA

No disclosure of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009 is shown as
the exercise prices of the outstanding share options of
the Company during the year are higher than the average
market prices of the ordinary shares of the Company and
accordingly there is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share.
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13.

14.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Reclassification adjustment relating to components of other
comprehensive income

13. HEh2mEKE

EBEMREKRIED 2 SH o ERR

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Available-for-sale financial assets: A EMBEE
Changes in fair value recognised during AEEERZ AT EE
the year - (2,670)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts BN ERAR CHEEERESE
transferred to consolidated income RelEEA . HEBE
statement for loss on disposal - 4,247
Net movement in the fair value reserve NEEREZZEFRAFTA
during the year recognised BREEMEEKE
in other comprehensive income - 1,577

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. The chief operating decision makers of the Group
are the Group’s Executive Directors. The adoption of HKFRS
8 did not have any effect on the Group’s financial or operating
results, and has not changed the Group’s reportable segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

14. 2 ERE

AEEERMAE_ZTTNFOA—BEEX
ZEBMGHRELERNESR [FEDE] - BB
M mEERESHE A —RWEER HRE
AANTREERRERNEERTEDRYL
AP E R IE T E BB 2 B B AN SR AR A BB
Mz ABHREREEABBEEDH AR
BrZIBRERRERAEEZHITES
RNE BB RS R ER A A EE 2B
BREEXBEVEEFATE TELEAE
Bz 280 R

DREMBAKE 2 XBRIMESEES -
AEEREBUARBEDBEMEREERET
A AR RS A KB 2 R &
Y
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

68

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

—  Broadcasting and content production. the production of

broadcasting programmes.

- Multi-media product trading: the trade of multimedia

14.

DE®E (&)

ES Tk

AEBAEUTEIZXEBOE:

EEREHRIE: EFE AR

proaucts.
Broadcasting and Multi-media
content production product trading Consolidated
BB 8 B R SHREEMER =R
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-8% CZTTHNF ZB-Bf CTTHNF ZB-BF CZITTHH
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETFT
Revenue from external customers RENREP 2 W 19 5,707 74,731 22,281 74,750 27,988
Segment results DEEE (59) 7,891 (2,326) 9,535 (2,385) 17,426
Interest income FIEWA 4 203
Unallocated corporate operating income K % A b Z A2 & I A 12,707 160
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity  fEf5 — S REHIEE 2
BB (87) -
Unallocated corporate operating APREELEHT
expenses (1,476) (14,234)
Profit from operations B E R 8,763 3,555
Finance costs RMEMKA (5) (1,618)
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 8,758 1,037
Income tax FfEHL (1,185) -
Profit for the year AEERF 7,573 1,037
Depreciation for the year FEWE 606 811 - 1 606 812
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment & 1&# B 2 CREEEERE) /
loss on broadcasting programmes REBE (807) 9,917 - - (807) 9,917
Impairment loss/(reversal of BHRMER 2 RESRE/
impairment loss) on trade receivables (REBERR) 152 (2,059) - - 152 (2,059)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BRERRELZ
plant and equipment (W) / B#E (109) 223 - 22 (109) 245
Gain on release of obligation upon lapse R ELE [ 15 i 5% k4
of production and EREBEI Y WS
broadcasting agreement - (6,971) - - - (6,971)
Gain on waiver of payables e R FE ME (1) (8,556) (109) - (110) (8,556)
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) DR E ()
Business segments (Continued) E¥BIE(E)
Broadcasting and Multi-media
content production product trading Consolidated
BB RO A HE SEBERER R
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-8f C—TTNF ZEB-Bf CZTTHNF ZEBE-BFE C"TTNH
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEEFIT BEFT BEMFIT BEFT BEFIT
Segment assets AEEE 804 3,886 37,662 41,323 38,466 45,209
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R REEH B R 61 -
Unallocated corporate assets APMEEEE 20,889 10,598
Total assets BELE 59,416 55,807
Segment liabilities HBEAE 11,189 14,226 6,197 8,277 17,386 22,503
Unallocated corporate liabilities APOREEEE 1,967 600
Total liabilities AERE 19,353 23,103
Capital expenditure incurred FREECERRY
during the year 16 401 3 = 19 401
Geographical segments hEDE

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based

on the geographical location of the assets.

EiE S B2 ERE 2 BEREIREE
FriEuES D ’\*ﬁé{F&f§$Eﬁ§Z
AR EE 2B B & D

Mainland China Hong Kong Consolidated
hEIR B &
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Zf CZTTNF ZEB-ZTf CTTHNf ZE-BF CZITTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BYF BEFT BYF BEF T BYF BEFT
Revenue from external customers REMAEP 2 s 296 6,957 74,454 21,031 74,750 27,988
Carrying amount of segment assets SBEERRE 865 3,886 58,551 51,921 59,416 55,807
Capital expenditure incurred during iWFEZﬁZWﬂ?Z

the year 16 401 3 - 19 401
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

70

15. Y% - HEBERRE

The Group NE
Office
Plant furniture
Leasehold and and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicle Total
HE WAZE
MELE BERER HKEREE AE HiE
H/{$ ‘000 H/{$ ‘000 H/{$ ‘000 H/{$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BEFIT BEFT BEFIT BEFIT BEFT
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2008 RZZETN\FHOA—H 21 3,921 190 1,160 5,292
Exchange adjustments BE b FH - 67 - - 67
Additions R - 401 - - 401
Disposals HE 1) (650) (186) - (857)
At 31 March 2009 and RZZTTNE
1 April 2009 ZA=+—Hk
—ETHhEF
MAE—H - 3,739 4 1,160 4,903
Exchange adjustments BEE 3, FE B - 32 - - 32
Additions NE - 16 3 - 19
Disposals HE - - ¥ (1,160) (1,162)
At 31 March 2010 R-B-ZF
=A=+-—-H - 3,787 5 - 3,792
Accumulated I
depreciation
At 1 April 2008 RZZETNFEOA—A 2 2,637 37 703 3,279
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 2 = 44 = = 44
Charge for the year FEHIRR 1 566 13 232 812
Written back on disposals i} & £ [ @) (560) (49) = 612)
At 31 March 2009 and RZZEZNF
1 April 2009 =A=+—HBk
ZETNF
MA—H - 2,587 1 935 3,523
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 3R 2 - 22 - - 22
Charge for the year FEME - 470 1 135 606
Written back on disposals 1 & #[@] = = ©) (1,070) (1,071)
At 31 March 2010 R-B-EF
=A=+-—H - 3,079 1 - 3,080
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2010 R-B—-ZF
=A=+—-AH - 708 4 - 712
At 31 March 2009 RZZZNEF
=A=+—H - 1,152 3 225 1,380

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &




Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment held under a finance lease

The Group leased a motor vehicle under a finance lease which
was expired in May 2009. At the end of the lease term the Group
had the option to purchase the leased motor vehicle at a price
deemed to be a bargain purchase option.

As at the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicle
held under a finance lease of the Group amounted to nil (2009:
HK$225,000).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15.

16.

M3 MR RRE (E)
REMEBESE 2R HBERRE
AEERBR_ZSTNFRAERHMER

EHMARE -REERERE ~EEEEE
BREZERBEZFAE-

REER FAEEREREHERFGZRE
FEEFEAZS (ZZEZ NLF B 225000
JC) °

R B QR RS

The Company

AAH
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRD A AR 59,031 59,031
Less: Impairment losses J R EEE 59,031 59,031
Amount due from a subsidiary NN /S 29,613 =
29,613 -

(@ In view of the accumulated losses and poor operating
performance of the subsidiaries, the directors concluded
that it is appropriate to make full impairment losses of
HK$59,031,000 (2009: HK$59,031,000) for the investment
costs in these subsidiaries.

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The amount due
is either past due or impaired.

@ BHRANBARBESSHBEREXRKRE
RIE-WEESREBEARNNBRARZE
& X AN 1 2 208 #59,031,0007T (=
TENF : ##59,031,0007T ) Z BB E

Be
b) BWMBARFETEER 2EKE

& E 2 S - B UK IR T B B Y SR
{EO
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. AMBE AR 2= (&)
(c) The following are details of the Company’s subsidiaries © TXREATBZEAEEELELE BEK
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities BEZHBARFE BRI AEHAN
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares FTiEp& (28 R A @ A% o

72

unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

EERLH
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation ordinary/ Group’s
and registered effective  Held by the Held by  Principal
Name of company operation share capital interest Company  subsidiary  activities
A K ERTERRAZ HALEE HAAR HKEAR
AR ERH B EE/ ERBRE BREE o] BB IEEH
Shanghai New Culture TV PRC RMB5,000,000 48% - 60%  Sales of multi-media
and Radio Making Co., F AR #5,000,0007T products
Ltd. (“Shanghai New HESEEER
Culture”) (Note (j))
R RRER S E
BRAR (I EEFL])
(Hzt)
Tidetime Future Optical Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% 100% - Multi-media product
Media Technology Limited ~ &% HK$1 each trading
REETMAEBERAA 10,000%% BEESEBED
BREE
1B T2 R1n
Treasurepoint Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
HERIHS US$1 each REER
RERERE
1ETZ’H
STR Media Limited BV 100 share of 80% 80% - Investment holding
HERIHS US$1 each REER
1008%
SRER
1ETZ’H

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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16 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

(0

16. RIB QR 2 (#F)

Proportion of ownership interest

REERELH
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation ordinary/ Group’s
and registered effective  Held by the Held by  Principal
Name of company operation share capital interest Company  subsidiary  activities
AL K ERTEBRRAZ HAEE mAAR HHEEAR
ARER K HE/ ZRRE BREE BE ¥E TEER
Sun Arts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 50% 50%  Provision of
BB HK$1 each corporate
28k services
BREE RN AR
18T Z R
China Giant Investments BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment in
Limited EBRUME US$1 each securities
REREERAA 1R BHRE
SREE
1ETZ KD
Goldmax Trading Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100% 100% - Multi-media product
SRESHERARA BB HK$1 each trading
18 BEESEBEM
SREE
18T Z R
Kt iz -

Shanghai New Culture is registered under the laws of the PRC as
a sino-foreign equity joint venture on 24 November 1998 to be

operated for 20 years up to 23 November 2018.

(0

EEHXIER—AANE+—AB=+MA
BEPBAEFMAEPINEELE ATE
—t+F&FE =T NFt+—A=+=AH1k-
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17.

74

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 17. AEEZEHER 2 EE
The Group The Company
KE KAF]
2010 2010
—E-FF —2-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BMF T BT
Cost of investment in jointly controlled RZZEZENE=A=1+—H
entity at 31.03.09 RARIZES BB ZIREKE -
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary EEgWE—FNERQF
(Note (a)) (Hiit@)) -
Share of post-acquisition loss FE1G U iE 1% 2 518 (87)
Share of other comprehensive loss FEEEMEE 2 EE -
Share of net liabilities EhaEFEE (87)
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity & Ui 2t [7 35 & & 52 7008
(Note (b)) (Hietb)) 148 148
61
(a) During the year, the Group acquired the entire issued share (@ EFRN AEBEWETREESEERAA
capital of Trend Advertising Company Limited, whose MEPEBITZIRO EFTEEEL
principal asset is a 49% equity interest in a joint controlled A9% N ERIZEFIERE 2w L RElE
entity, Beijing Creative Star International Advertising Limited, EFRBREEERANNEEBKAS -
with zero net assets value.
(b) The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, (o) FEUCIL R4l & B2 2 FRI8 T 2 S
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The PR REETERE HEKKBEAD
amount due is either past due or impaired. EIHR S RE

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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—FEF=ZA=F—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

(c)

The particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity, which
is unlisted and limited liability company, is set out as follows:

Particulars of

Percentage of

. REBEHERZES (F)

() SEZARZEHEBRIFELTRERA

Al BEFFBT

Place of

issued and interest held Principal incorporation
Name paid up capital by the Group activity and operation
BETR HEEREEZ SRS R
=L HBERA ERAfkE FEXR AR B
Beijing Creative Star International USD300,000 49% Advertising PRC
Advertising Limited* 300,000% 7T E& Y

IRABEERESERAR

Summarised financial information on a jointly controlled

\/\l_J* %”g—;ﬂ%

SEEDEAREIH

entity related to the Group’s interest: FEUBER
2010
—B-2F
HK$’000
B FT
Non-current assets FEMBEE 2
Current assets mENEE 16
Current liabilities neaE (112)
Net liabilities BfEHE (94)
Income & 121
Expenses X (208)
Loss for the year AREE 2 EE (87)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s SERHEREHERE 2 #an WEEE

interest in the jointly controlled entity, and no contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity itself.

Note™: Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered under the PRC
law to be operated up to 8 September 2017.

BAEREcHARAERARE %IJ -2

Wi BEFREEZMATINEGEDLE:
AEXE—Z—+FHANB-
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18. BROADCASTING PROGRAMMES 18. EHEHE B
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at 1 April RIUA—HBZEREE - 15,868
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B - 276
Additions NE - 595
Amortisation H - (6,822)
Impairment A - (9,917)

76

Carrying amount at 31 March

(@

The broadcasting programmes were amortised to
consolidated income statement under cost of sales for the
year ended 31 March 2009. The broadcasting programmes
were derecognised on (i) disposal, or (i) when no future
economic benefits were expected from their use or disposal.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the directors
assessed the recoverable amount of broadcasting
programmes and concluded that it was appropriate to
recognise full impairment loss of HK$9,917,000, due to the
fact that there was deteriorating marketability and that these
broadcasting programmes were not commercially viable to
generate sufficient cash flows to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the directors were
of the opinion that all these broadcasting programmes
were written off, due to the expiry of production licence for
television programmes.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

R=A=+—HZzKHEE

(@)

RZBZENEF=ZRA=+—BFEILEHE
BIRMHENARGA WA REE &
BE RN LER - SKFEMERKLE
BERSHE T BESKEMNAR S
BREERR °

HE-_ZTTNF=A=+—HItEE"
ERFHERSE 2 BB KRR R
B BERmBHEEEE ARSEERER
Bl AEEERSLEAEETREN
MRS R WERBEREREBEBE
9,917,000 A BIRE °

RE-_T—TF=A=+—HILFE.
EERANMAEEDR 2BHH R
R BRE A A5 (EIREE I
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19. TRADING SECURITIES 19. BHEE
The Group
REH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trading securities EHFEEHE

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, EBEBELTMRAES

at fair value AAFEFE 16,620 10,223

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2010, the carrying amounts of interests in each of
the following companies exceeded 10% of total assets of the

Group and the Company:

BRAEFO RN FEEREEERRT IS E K

Y AY(E -

R-ZE—ZF=A=+—HB RUATRAIAHR
EORANEREEE CBAEERARINE

BE10% :

Particulars of

Proportion
of ownership

Place of issued shares held interest held
Name incorporation Principal activities by the Group by the Group
HASERES
= &E it B 3L FEEK ERTRARKRAR 2 ez el
Wah Nam International Bermuda Mining and provision 4,708,000 ordinary 0.15%
Holdings Limited BRE of limousine rental shares of HK$0.10
EMREERER AT and airport shuttle each
services 4,708,000 138 I% & I%
BRHE M e it H {80.18 7T 2 15
SEBHEHEER
135 o7 12 AR 75
China Wind Power Group Bermuda Wind power plant 7,310,000 ordinary 0.10%
Limited BRE investment and shares of HK$0.10

TEEREREAR QA

operation
RENEERIREES

each
7,310,000 3/ I% & i%
[EREIOR Vi
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ES R EMERERR
The Group The Company
KEH RKAF
2010 2009 2010 2009

—®-BF —TTNF -B-BF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT  EETT  EMFT  BETR

Amounts due from subsidiaries YN/

(Note (a)) (Kiit@)) - - 8,025 10,000
Trade receivables (Note (b)) B SRR (fitb)) 15,228 7,424 - —
Prepayments and deposits FENZERZS 215 178 204 160
Other receivables (Note (c)) H b Uk BR 3 (A5t (c)) 4,160 118 - 2

19,603 7,720 8,229 10,162
(@) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) FEUWHEB A RFIE
The Company
AT
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B TFoT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W B /88 A R 3RIR 50,516 52,291
Less: Allowance for impairment O R E R 42,491 42,291
8,025 10,000
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- FEUTHT B A Al kI8 Jh K R - 4 B G iR
free and repayable on demand. BER(EE
In view of the subsidiaries, which sustained losses and HRNZENB A RS ERSEE RS
had poor operating performance, not financially capable RIEAXRE WZEWRB AR MK EX
of repaying to the Company, the directors concluded that BEERTARR A EFKEEX
it is appropriate to make an allowance for impairment of EZWEB AT ZBFEEH BB AR R 3]
HK$42,491,000 (2009: HK$42,291,000), after considering EHRE AKRAR UERETITERRE
the profitability, financial positions, cash flows and % REEZAEWRKIE AR ZKIEER
future prospects of these subsidiaries, and certain key B A2 491,000 (ZEZ N F B
assumptions. 42,291,0007T ) Z B E#E

78  Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited ZE& 55 (£E) R A F]
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

(@) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

Movements of allowance for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries are analysed as follows:

20. ESREHMBYERR (#F)

(a) FEWRBHE D RRKIE (&)

FE W H 8 A B R 2 R B BB E B 0 AT

T :

The Company

PN

2010 2009

—E2-ZF ZZTThF
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT JBMF T

At beginning of the year R E 7)) 42,291 111,558
Impairment loss recognised TERR (B E 18 200 19,595
Write-offs 2] - (88,862)
At end of the year NGRS 42,491 42,291

Trade receivables (b) EZEWERM
An aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for B HIBRAEHA1,741,0007T (ZE T NL5F -

impairment of bad and doubtful debts of HK$1,741,000

(2009: HK$1,575,000) is as follows:

7B #1,575,0007T) RIEBRBEREZE

SRR ZREDHTAT :

The Group
REH

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

Within 1 month —(@AR 13 6,630
More than 1 month ZR—E A ERWEAS R

but within 2 months 15,212 32
More than 2 months ZIRMERAER=EARK

but within 3 months 3 -
More than 3 months ZR=EREREAR

but within 6 months = 38

Over 6 months but within 12 months  ZR/NMEAER+ @A R - 724

15,228 7,424
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Trade receivables (Continueq)

The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from 15
days to 180 days to its trade customers. The Group may,
on a case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customers’ request. Receivables that were past
due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

As at 31 March 2010, trade receivables with age over one
year but within 3 years of approximately HK$1,741,000
(2009: HK$1,575,000) were determined to have been
impaired and full allowance had been made, in light of the
fact that these trade receivables were long overdue for
over one year as at the balance sheet date without any
settlement during that year and remained outstanding, and/
or were due from debtors with financial difficulties.

Movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as
follows:

20. ESREMBYERR (Z)

(b) BZEWERR (&)

AEB-RETEZIEPRTI5RE
180RZEEH - REE AR ERIE MR -
RIAZEZPNEBBEREEFR
B AEREFPERMEREEH - EBW
RARAEBMEREAEEE R FRLE
ZETEILE P M &R E - RIR
NENKR ARREERR ARY
BEEERZEAEPHRRFERMIE
RABHEE RYEFERRSTEH
TR E B - AR B |\ pt % 5 4
FAEEMERRKEMEETA

MN-BE-FTF=A=+—0 AR4B
#1,741,000 RIRE R —FER=F A
(ZZEZTHF B 575,00070 ) 2 RE
EE S RUERZNEE B E REHERIB
B—F EFRANETMEER BIHE
BER/RREBETHRREHESA
W EAEHE YEIEE 2 EHBE-

BERBIEBOIIT

80 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=F5 )¢ (£ E ) ER QA

The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—Z—ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EBEF T BT T
At beginning of the year REH] 1,575 3,572
Exchange adjustments ME 5, o8 B 14 62
Reversal of impairment loss LB 5 18 B Bl = (2,059)
Impairment loss recognised TERR EEE 152 =
At end of the year REFL 1,741 1,575
(c) Other receivables (c) HEWIRMR
None of amounts due are either past due or impaired. N 4 fE U 3008 2 B BB sl A ©
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. HeRBREEEER

The Group The Company
REE FiN/NE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —_TTHhEF ZEB-BF —_TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT EETT
Cash at banks and on hand IRITRFHEIERS 22,420 36,484 2,153 36,112
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EZREMEMERR
The Group The Company
KEE A T
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-F —TTNF —T-BF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT B¥TT  BETFT
Amount due to a related company  FEHB B A BIFUIA
(Note (a)) (Kii# @) 1,936 4,181 = -
Trade payables (Note (b)) 2 P EMNERR
(Hiat®b)) 392 5,336 = -
Accruals and other payables JEETE R K
B At JE S BR 3K 15,840 13,547 408 3,153
18,168 23,064 408 3,153
Notes: sk

(@ Amount due to a related company

The amount due to E/EF LB EHEEERBER A A (FXbE
i) (formerly known as BB XLEEEXREEB)ERAA) is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. ¥ X
{E{E 1% is the former holding company of a minority shareholder of

Shanghai New Culture.

(a)

P —ERE A RKE

BN LB X EBREBBRNDABR A
(MFUeEE]) (RIS LE# @R
B(RE)AERRR) ZFAREEN 2
BN E B EE SR - B R /AR E
LU DB R Z FIER AR -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Trade payables

An aged analysis of trade payables as of the balance sheet date is

as follows:

22 ESRHEMENERR(E)
Kzt : (&)

(b) EZHEMRK

REEBEZENRFZRESITT :

The Group
AEHE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month —EAR - 4,948
More than 1 month but within 2 months Zrs—E A ERME A A - -
More than 2 months but within 3 months ~ Z M {E B {ER =1 A RN - -
Over 3 months BB =1EA 392 388
392 5,336

23. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

82

As 31 March 2010, the Group had obligation under a finance

23. BMEHERIE

R-ZE-—ZTF=_A=+—H AEEEREE

lease repayable as follows: ZREREAENT
The Group
rE
2010 2009
—EB—2F —ETNF
Present Present
value value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BREHES BREHES =IEHEE =EHEE
ZBE Wz Z A ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT JENFL BB TT
Within 1 year —F A - - 39 44
- - 39 44
Less: Total future interest expense  J& - R 5K A B Fi X 4258 - (5)
Present value of lease obligation HEEERE - 39

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 11 June 2007 and 20 June 2007, the Company and two
independent third parties (the “Subscribers”) entered into
a subscription agreement and a supplemental agreement
whereby the Company agreed to issue convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$25,354,000 to
the Subscribers at par. The convertible notes were unsecured,
interest bearing at 2% per annum and mature after five years
from the date of issue of the convertible notes.

The holders of the convertible notes had the conversion right
as attached to the convertible notes to convert any of the
outstanding principle amount of the convertible notes into the
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.228
per share, subject to adjustments, during the conversion period
commencing from the date of issue of convertible notes to the
seven business days immediately prior to the date of maturity of
the convertible notes.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible note. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
option, was included in shareholders’ equity in convertible notes
reserve.

On 24 March 2009, the Company paid HK$25,354,000 to
redeem the convertible notes in full, after modification of
conditions to allow early redemption.

24, TR EE

R_EBEELFNA+T—BER_ZEZTLFAX
AZ+RH AXRAEKMBBLE=7 ([R
BADIURBHRZRABERBE A2 F
AEMRBAERAMEETASRELER
25,354,000 2 Al # AR 45 - A MR 215 &
IR R FE R RER B WA A RRER
BITHHARFT AFE R HT -

AR RERE AR B IRREEMH iR
AR (B RRREETARE
ERTHEZEINHANCEEEA) R
FRWEGREK0.2287T (LEHE) KA
BMEZEBEABOASBELBABARRRRN

BERD ZAFETINES 2 A R ER
TGN ERAE - RMERERR AL BEZ
EBE ENATRREREEZRRESR -

R_EZENE=ZA -+ ELLZRE
B ZIEHEEBENRE ADAa X HBE
25,354,0007T LA B HUE Bl AT IR 24 o
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

25,

84

The convertible notes recognised in the balance sheet were

calculated as follows:

24, ARARKRE

B (&)

REEABRERIAIRKEBRFTENT:

The Group and the Company

AEBERAEAT
2010 2009
—E-EfF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBEMF T
Fair value of convertible notes RZZEZLFEA+BEITZ
issued on 16 July 2007 AR RE 2 N FE - 25,354
Equity component (Note 26(a)) =B (Hit26@) - (6,074)
Liability component on initial recognition RZZEZT+LFEH+<H
at 16 July 2007 TIREREZBEHD - 19,280
Accumulated interest expense 2EFBRX - 2,703
Accumulated interest paid 2 ERFE - (860)
Redemption of convertible notes FE 3] AT R fix R 1% - (23,110)
Loss on redemption of convertible notes BRI A] #iE Z & 7 Ei8
(Note 7(b)) (K1a27b)) - 1,987
Liability component at end of the year RERZBERS - -

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(a) Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:

25 REEERERAZHAER

BERBRAZI ZBIHREMEREA:

The Group
REE
2010 2009
—E—EF ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBEFT BT T
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax REZFST M
for the year 1,185 —

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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25. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in

25 REEERBRAZMEHR (&)

(b) BEHEELE(BE)LEFIATIEA

respect of the following items: SR
The Group The Company
REE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —TThF ZEB-TF —_ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
BETFT ENFTT EB¥TT  BETFT
Deductible/(taxable) temporary  BI 1%, (& =271 )
differences O M E R
— decelerated/(accelerated) —BR (IR FiIAE
tax depreciation e 131 (60) - =
Tax losses TIEEE 147,088 182,425 90,166 86,329
147,219 182,365 90,166 86,329

The tax losses and deductible temporary differences do
not expire under current tax legislation. It is improbable that
future profit will be available in foreseeable future against
which the tax losses and deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

(c) Temporary differences arising in connection with interest in a
jointly controlled entity are insignificant.

RIBIRITHOL - BRI K A HIBE
MEBEY T EER - RERAEEEHE
S ) AT P A KK 5 A5 TR B 18 K% R R B
HEZRE -

(c) E R B 40 2 T A 2 O
EERTEAM -

Annual Report 2010 i 85



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

86

(@) The Company

26. EXRK f#H

(a)

AT

Share Convertible

Share Share Contributed option notes Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
BRE TR
kA RHEE EHEH ifE FEBRE EAER  RAEE
HK$ 000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETr  BEFr  EETr BEFr EETr BEFr BT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEENEMA—A 5,560 18,710 84,798 7 6,074 (87,945) 22,204
Total comprehensive loss ~ AEEZEEE 2B
for the year - - - - - (4,823) (4,823)
Issue of shares #1714 4,449 24,465 - - - - 28,914
Transaction cost related BBEETRO LR AKE
to issue of shares - (1,014) - - - - (1,014)
Equity-settled share-based ~ LARAEERHOF AR5
transactions - - - 9% - = 9%
Forfeiture of share options R UnE& Rk i - - - (32) - 20 (12)
Redemption of EETARSE
convertible notes - - - - (2,244) - (2,244)
Release of reserve* it - - - - (3,830) 3,830 -
At 31 March 2009 and RZZENE
1 April 2009 ZAZ+-Ak
“ZTNENA-H 10,009 37,161 84,798 71 - (88,918) 43,121
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFEZEEE A8
for the year - - - - - (3,386) (3,386)
Forfeiture of share options ;R Ut EB i - - - (33) - 33 -
At 31 March 2010 R=Z-BE=R=1-H 10,009 37,161 84,798 38 - (92,271) 39,735

*

Since the convertible notes were fully redeemed, the equity

component was therefore released and the reserve was
transferred to accumulated losses.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

Y BRTHEL A HRRER - AL e
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 26. EXN#E (£F)
(b) Share capital (b) BA&
(i) Authorised share capital () ZEERE
Number of
shares Amount
gvig 4= MIE
‘000 HK$ 000
TR BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BEREEBK0.0ITZEER:
each:
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 RZ=ZTZENFMA—H -
and 31 March 2010 —EENEF=A=T—HK
2 Z2F=A=+—H 66,000,000 660,000
Convertible non-voting SR EE B %0.0270 2 7] KR E
preference shares of RERBERS:

HK$0.02 each:
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R-ZZT)N\FWMA—H -
and 31 March 2010 —EERNF=ZA=+—HRK
—E-TFE=A=+—H 2,000,000* 40,000

Total authorised share capital & R4~ 42 8 :

At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZEF=F=+—H 700,000
At 31 March 2009 RZEENF=A=+—H 700,000
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TR A A B RWENE KA
dividends as declared from time to time and are BB WEARNRIRBEANE AR
entitled to one vote per share at shareholders’ BE—BEROAE —EZEXRERE -G
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank N EBREEMmMS B ZTERH
equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets. B RSN -

*  Convertible non-voting preference shares of *  850,000,0008% AJ it 14 1% Z 1 (E

850,000,000 have not yet been issued. SERR (G IR T o
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

(i) Issued and fully paid share capital

26. EXRGEE (&
(b) M& (%)

(i) EXRTRHMERI:

Number of
shares Amount
vl - 4E] MIE
‘000 HK$'000
T BETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BREEBL00ITZZER:
each:
At 1 April 2008 R-ZEZENEFEMNA—H 556,037 5,560
Shares issued on AR B 75 = 31 TR
— Placing (Note (i) —B2E (H173) 111,204 1,112
— Open Offer (Note (ii)) —RRBE (M) 333,620 3,337
At 31 March 2009 and 31 RZBEZNF=ZA=+—HK
March 2010 —E—ZTF=F=+—H 1,000,861 10,009
Notes: B2
()  On 5 March 2009, the Company placed 111,204,000 i) R-ZBEZAF=FEB AAQT

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.065

AR S #0.065 T 2 BI& A A &

to the placing agents (“Placing”).

(i)  On 31 March 2009, 333,620,560 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued to the qualifying
shareholders of the Company on the basis of one
ordinary share for every two existing ordinary shares
then held at a subscription price of HK$0.065 per share

under Open Offer.

(i)  The net proceeds from the Placing and Open Offer of
approximately HK$27,900,000 were used for financing
possible diversified investments and general working

capital purposes.

88  Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=F5 ¢ (£E ) ER QA

RIZFZE111,204,0000% F A% EE
BE0.01 Tz A% ([RE]) -

iy R=-TEZTAF=A=+—8"
BIEAHEE UERRAEES
¥O0.065 IR ERERFAEMARR
ETEREE—RETBERZE
o EAREZABRBEET
3383,620,5600% & 1% E &5 ¥ 0.01
TL2 R

(i) MERAHBEZFEBRIBFRE
#9745 #27,900,0007T * T4 A 1 B
NOREED R ER —REBEE
S H%-
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the result of capital
reorganisation implemented in December 2003 and
September 2005. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
distributions out of contributed surplus if:

— itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

—  the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy Note

3(a).
Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisaton in
November 1992 and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

26. EXRfEE (&)

(c) REZHERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BRG&E

ERARMEERIEBRE— NN\~
FRAVEFAOGHE -

EHEG

BERBSKE _ZET=F+_AK
“EERFNANBRAEA - RIE
BRE-NN—FRAVE ARF]
MBS B R AR AT - e B
ETHER  ARFAF B IR HIK
BRENAEHRMRIELIRE:

— RN EHA GRS
REEAEERE

- BREEMNTEREERERE
& BBITRARRNEER
AR -

EX
PE i ekt B R R BB I TS B 15

SZBELEZRE BN FEHERE
FERRFIQREE -

(iv) BAGEE

BAREBR NN _F+—A%KE
EAMKEHEARRN 2 REE
BEARRAWEAREMETRN 25K
EERZRE
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

27.

90

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share based payments in Note 3(m)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company,
including contributed surplus and accumulated losses, was
nil (2009: Nil).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent the fair
value of employee services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the
options over the relevant vesting periods and is recognised as
staff costs and related expenses (Note 7(a)) with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve.

(a)

Share options

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 10 November 2002 whereby the Board is
authorised, at their discretion, to grant to employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group,
and eligible grantees to take up options and subscribe for
the shares of the Company. The terms and conditions of
the grant are determined by the Board at the time of grant.
In any event, the exercisable period of an option must not
exceed a period of ten years commencing on the date of
grant. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Options are forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

26.

27.

BEARNGREE (&
(c) REz2HERRARE (&)
v) BEREGE

BRIEREBERETARRERRT
FREREEERRGHAHENATE
8+ 75 8 25058 1% B8 B 3 (m) i) AT 3%
BERARMEAN RS EERER
NG

(d) 7k

RZZE—ZF=A=+—8 ARQFA
RETERISBEAZREER (BREE
BEKRZFER)RTL(ZTZTAN
F:FT) °

URAEEROFEARS

IABRME 2 REMERTIEREBRSZES
MARREREEERENGESZES
R A FE BRI R T RENEEE S
BHRERERE 2 ATFETE  THERE
BITARBBR (ME7@)) - iR E
TR IR AE P2 N

(a) BRRE

ARAR_ZBZ_F+— A+ BHEHK—
HEREE MEFSRRERNER
AEEEBBEASEIMAKE AR
EENAERARARBEARABK
B ARBARRBM KL BRED
fERR R 6 A R EE B R th R AR R OR
E e MEMBRT  BREMNITERA
AR HE AR T F - BB
B TR ARE B R E B
A -HERRAASE BRESK
UK o
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continueq)

(b)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed

27. URFAEEROGEARS (&)

(b) FARAEREEFURGENRWEER

during the years are as follows and all options are EERRGEEDT
settled by physical delivery of shares:
Number of Number of
options options
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price outstanding outstanding
2010 2009
W ARITEZ HARITEZ
EREHE BAEZ B
R A8 BEAH THEH 168 —2-%F ZZETNE
28 March 2008 28 March 2008 to 1 May 2008 to HK$0.169 - 714,570
—EENE 30 April 2008 31 October 2009 B #0.1697T
=A=-+N\H “TE\&=A-t/\HE —TEN\FRA-HZ
T N\FMNA=TH “ETNF+A=T—H
28 March 2008 28 March 2008 to 1 November 2008 to HK$0.169 596,112 596,112
—TINEF 31 October 2008 31 October 2010 & #0.1697T
=A=-+N\H “EEN\E=ZA-+N\HE —TENF+—F—-HZ
ZEE\FtA=t—A ZE-ZTETA=T—H
596,112 1,310,682
Note: Mt -
(1) During the year ended 31 March 2009, as a result of the (1) BE=ZEZAF=A=+—HFEL"

completion of the Open Offer pursuant to the prospectus of
the Company dated 12 March 2009, adjustments were made
to the number of ordinary shares to be allotted and issued
upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to then
1,372,000 outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme by the decrease of an aggregate number of
61,318 ordinary shares to 1,310,682 ordinary shares and the
exercise prices of all outstanding options were adjusted from
HK$0.161 per ordinary share to HK$0.169 per ordinary share,
all effective from 31 March 2009.

HRBEARARBRHA-_STTAF=
A+-BZBREERTRAARE R
BHEOTEERBEREFSBEBTIREZ
1,372,000 /(& A 17 15 B B 42 Py B 75
ZREBREZE TR KRBT TER
D E B R A £61,318 LB E
1,310,6820% & 18 i% LA & 2 8F i R 1T 5
BREZTEENRESR T BB
0.1617C# 2 % LB A H#0.1697T -

BEABRB-_TTNF=A=1t—HE

BEFHLe
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

92

(Continued)

(c) The weighted average exercise prices and number of
share options are as follows:

27. URAGEERBERARS (£)

(c) BREMEFITEEREBENT:

2010 2009
—E-=F —EENF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
RS BB AR AE ANt 15 B 1
TEE A IfEE #H
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B TR BB TR
Outstanding at beginning of REF W ARITE
the year 0.169 1,311 0.161 1,932
Forfeited R UL 0.169 (715) 0.161 (560)
Adjustment due to Open Offer AAZEEDL ZAR
(Note 27(b)(1)) (Kiaz27o)(1)) N/ATER - 0.169 61)
Total outstanding at end of RE R ARITEARE
the year 0.169 596 0.169 1,311
Exercisable at 31 March AR=A=+—HB11E 0.169 596 0.169 1,311

The options outstanding at 31 March 2010 had exercise
price of HK$0.169 (2009: HK$0.169) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.6 year (2009: 1 year).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx/&/5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

R-E—ZTF=A=1+—HMHEKTE
IR 2 1T B RB 0169 (=
T TN F B H0.1697T) » M 0 F 5
Fler A A EIR 50.6F (ZETAF: —

SE) e
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

27. URFAEEROGEARS (&)

(Continueq)
(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions

For the options granted on 28 March 2008, the fair value
of services received in return for share options granted is
measured with reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on the Binomial Pricing Model.
Contractual life of the option and expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the model. The expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends as well as
expectation on future period performance. Changes in
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Hong Kong

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

Other than Hong Kong

The subsidiary of the Group in the PRC other than Hong Kong
participate in defined contribution schemes organised by the
respective municipal or provincial governments in the PRC
whereby it is required to make contributions at the rate 25%
(2009: 22%) of the standard wages determined by the relevant
authorities in the PRC.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant PRC scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the contributions.

(d) BREZQAFERER

FR_ZBENF=ZA -+ N\BRERE
R BRI T = - BRI h O A T &
REHEHWRBHOATFEDIZEZEREER
B AT EE ERHENREHQ
FEGADRE-_AXNEEENE -
BREAOHMABRETETIAAE
BB A - T8 B 1R T5 2 70 B 20K 1R
o FRHIR S D EBER S MIEHR
REBEETE THERNEENEG HE
AAFEELEEARE-

28. EERKER

5k

AEBERBEESRHELTESTENEG - A
ZEREBREBIEO T 2 EEZaHEA
BEertal ([RESE]) -8EE5rE M
BUXTATEZ EREERKE B
MEEE BEEREEBSBHEAEKRBESH
BURA Z5% M@ EEFEEL 3 S A
AR LR &7 20,0007 ° I 512 2 4
SRENBSER 8B o

FRUINMMEE

AEBERNTE (BB 2HBRR2HER
R BEE MR SRN 2 EREFEE X
AR ETE 225% (—TFNF 1 22%) 1
HER G XA EAREBMIETE -

RIE LG8 BB R RKER ZENKRE
M E AR B EE AN MR ELHE
HON - REE A E|EAMETS
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

94

FLOWS

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended 31 March
2010

Trend Advertising Company Limited is a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Its principal business is investment
holding. Subsequent to the completion of acquisition and on 1
April 2009, it contributed nil revenue and loss of HK$3,000 to the
Group.

The cash flow and fair value of the subsidiary acquired are
provided below:

%Aiﬁa%/)lbiﬁpﬁ.a

REBE-ZE-FF=-A=1T-HRLEFERNK
LA N

HRESERARA—HMESEMZERA
Al HFrBEKAREIER %'znﬁm&ﬁ%fé&
R-ZETNFEMNA— BEARER 2 RS

H Bk & H B8 A48 #3,0007T °

PRI B ARIMIRERER A FENT

The Group
£33
HK$'000
BEFT

Interest in a jointly controlled entity RS F AR
Other debtor HAi &R A

Net asset acquired W s BB 5
Consideration paid EXRE

Goodwill arising on acquisition W FTE £ 2 T2

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&[5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. BITH

(a) Catagories of financial instruments

() ZHERE T 2HMBTAR

The Group
KE
Assets at
Loans fair value
and through
receivables profit or loss Total
RATE
B R
i L EN *” BRECEE #at
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iilz3 BT T BT T BT T
Assets as per consolidated R&GSEE
balance sheet BERZEE
31 March 2010 —E-ZF=HA=+-—H
Amount due from JE U R 42 1) S 5RIR
a jointly controlled entity 17 148 - 148
Trade receivables 2 Z KR 20 15,228 - 15,228
Deposits e 20 4 - 4
Other receivables H fth & UK 20 4,160 - 4,160
Trading securities FHEE 19 - 16,620 16,620
Cash and cash equivalents Be M fﬁ ¢ EEEE 21 22,420 - 22,420
Total BEr 41,960 16,620 58,580
31 March 2009 —EENE=A=1+—H
Trade receivables B 2 W 20 7,424 - 7,424
Deposits R& 20 8 - 8
Other receivables H fth JE UK 20 118 = 118
Trading securities EHEE 19 = 10,223 10,223
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEFEER 21 36,484 - 36,484
Total Bt 44,034 10,223 54,257
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. I TH (&)
(a) Catagories of financial instruments (Continued) (a) ®BERE P 2HBITA (&)
The Group
rEE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
12 8 88 R A
SR 2 BT AE
Notes HK$'000
Kt BT T
Liabilities per consolidated RaeEEABRZAR
balance sheet
31 March 2010 —E-ZE¥=ZHA=+—-H
Amount due to a related company FEAS — A B & A Rl 38 22 1,936
Trade payables B S RN 3 22 392
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H & 5 3R 22 15,840
Total et 18,168
31 March 2009 —EENF=A=+—H
Obligation under a finance lease B & B A 23 39
Amount due to a related company JEAS — A B & A Rl 308 22 4,181
Trade payables Z PR 22 5,336
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & H & {5 3R 22 13,547
Total 5T 23,103

96
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

(@) Catagories of financial instruments (Continued)

30. BT R (&)

(a) ZRERIBSZHMBITA (E)

The
Company
AT
Loans
and
receivables
BEXRE
FE W 5k 18
Notes HK$'000
k=3 BT T
Assets as per balance sheet REEEBRZEE
31 March 2010 :g—giﬁzﬁzﬂ-—a
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U [t & A 16 & 20 37,638
Amount due from JE U AL [E) 4% %‘JE:‘%Q";’ FKIB
a jointly controlled entity 17 148
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEER 21 2,153
Total 5T 39,939
31 March 2009 —EENF=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ui B A &) 5K 20 10,000
Other receivables B & WK 20 2
Cash and cash equivalents HeReFBEEE 21 36,112
Total 5T 46,114
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

98

(@) Catagories of financial instruments (Continued)

30. I TH (&)

(a)

BRERED 2MBITA(E)

The Company

¥ N/NE|

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

12 8 88 R AR
SR 2 BT A E
Notes HK$'000
Kt BT T
Liabilities per balance sheet REEABRZAR
31 March 2010 —E-ZE¥=ZA=+—-H
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H & 5 3R 22 408
Total et 408
31 March 2009 —EENF=A=+—H
Accruals and other payables FEETE A I H {5 3R 22 3,153
Total 5T 3,153
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEEREEEEREER

(b)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operation risk
arising in the normal course of its business and financial
instruments. The Group’s risk management objectives and
policies mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse
effects of these risks on the Group by closely monitoring the

individual exposure as summarised below.
(1) Market risk

() Foreign currency risk

Certain of the assets of the Group are principally
denominated in United States dollars (“‘US$”).
Since HK$ is pegged to US$, thus foreign
exchange exposure on US$ is considered as
minimal. The Group currently does not have a

foreign currency hedging policy.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&[5 ¢ (£ E) AR A &

AEBZEBSRZEMERK 5
B (B IESNES [ B~ FI) R R K (B AR
ER) - EEER  REE SRR &S
ER EERBREEERERTHET
BiEfE- ALBZRABRERE B ZRKE

DERRERZIERE R - #
MREZERBREAEE 2 BETH
2 BT o

(1) THEEE
() SMEE R

AEBETEETBURTR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(1) Market risk (Continueq)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents (Note 21),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are
not expected to change significantly.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated balance sheet as
trading securities. The Group is not exposed to
commadity price risk.

The Company is exposed to other price risk
in respect of investments in subsidiaries.
The sensitivity to price risk in relation to the
investments in subsidiaries cannot be reliably
determined due to numerous uncertainties
regarding the future development of these
subsidiaries.

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in market value of the
Group’s trading securities, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company would
increase/decrease by HK$1,388,000 (2009:
HK$1,022,000) and accumulated losses would
decrease/increase by the same amount.

30. BT R (&)

(b)

MERAREEZBBREE (&)

(1) HHEEE (&)

(i)

(i)

B wE R A FEFEER
kRIRekBELEEEE (i
210 AEBIW|EHEMERKR
TREE -AKEZKAREK
SRS REARRM EB IR TS
= F B o BN IRITIFHF

TREmE RN ES)  NEEE
TRHRN X EHUT R EETE

EASE.

E 15 AR

AEEREZRENGEEE
BERTOEABEEE &
A B AR AR A B AR
o o 75 SR B30 934 5 7 2 R A
LEE

AARARBRENH B

R H A B AR L B Eﬁhé
R B A B 2 B 1% &k B
ERZENBARIKRKERZ
ZIE T EERRMAREA EE
F o

MN-ZE—ZTF=F=+—§"
B AEBZBLFEEMSE
Vﬂ/%m%u&%ﬁﬁﬁm

BHRFTIEER T ARQA]
% A AEGASEB R
#4075 #1,388,000( =
TN F B #1,022,0007T)
R EFHEBERD G INER
TEE
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. I ITHE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEMBEEZEEREE (&)
(Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued) (1) THEE (&)
(i) Price risk (Continued) (i) EEELE (&)
The sensitivity analysis above has been LA EBREE DT T RERIRNEE
determined assuming that the changes in the AR BHERES  WER
equity price had occurred at the balance shest REEs EI%HZ B 25 BT I 5
date and had been applied to the exposure to ZEEER - DT INMRERASE
equity security price risk in existence at that IZEEZ‘%Z AFEFRE
date. It is also assumed that the fair value of EFERARR MBS 2 R L AR E S
the Group’s trading securities would change in RMmEE A RFTAE Eih 8
accordance with the historical correlation with the WD E  —ETZNE DM
relevant equity price and that all other variable TyR AR EAEE LT -

remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2009.

(2) Credit risk (2 EFEmEE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash ANEEHZEZER ZHEBEERE
and cash equivalents, trading securities, amount due EE R ENER ma‘%f‘ﬁ%ﬁ R R
from a jointly controlled entity and trade and other PR ERE TR IE N E 5 I B Ath IR YRR
receivables. THAR -
The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the BARGEHRRITEER T WREH
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality kR EEESE=ZINLEZETAR
external credit ratings in Hong Kong and the PRC. HERITRB 2 EERR AR
Investments in trading securities are governed by KEBLSAESARTIETARR
whether the issuers and the counterparties respectively HFEZREERITFEEIR &/j
have sound credit rating and/or reputation. B
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity, trade FE R EETBREE S RE
and other receivables mainly arise from the Group’s fhEWMBR N T B R E ANEEER -
business activities. Management monitors the credit EEE—BHEREEHRER MASE
policy on an ongoing basis. The Group has established BRAERERFHEASEEER
procedures in the selection of customers with sound BN HEENEE
credit rating and/or reputation.
The Group has well defined policies in place on the AREBOHRITULRERES 8
setting and approval of trading credit and investment RIEERA FIREIESHIERSE B
position limits in order to limit its credit risk exposure TP EERBEREFEE BHE
and concentration. As at the balance sheet date, the #EH Z]KE@IEE EEFHNE

Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. ER b o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. I T A (£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BHEMREEZEEREE (&)
(Continued)
(3) Liquidity risk B) #“EBELEE
Individual operating entities within the Group are NEBANFERKESIEEE S HAN

responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed

SHRTER BREESBNRE
RERE AREAESRARREE
HIReFR EREERBEET
BEENKE ARAEGERRE
FeHE-AEBZHEATERE
RERPESHTLRBELETE
ERE REREFERRE KRS
B S 2 B AGE AR
EERIERRBESH R

lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

TRILBRBREEBREFESHE
HAZNHGRBEFEASE B
BEOREMEER AR -

The table below categorised the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date.

The tabulated amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash payments of the Group.

HRRTNEER/AKEZEHR
FRBLRE -

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
PR—F —FEWMF WMEZRF #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
As 31 March 2010 R-ZB—BF
=HA=+-—H
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fib & -t 3¢ 18,168 - - 18,168
As 31 March 2009 N_ZEZNF
=A=+—8
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H b & 5 7k 23,064 - - 23,064
Obligation under EhE T E AR
a finance lease 44 - - 44
23,108 - - 23,108

Annual Report 2010 & 101



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(4)

(5

Operation risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected by
significant political, economic and social uncertainties
in the PRC. Although the PRC government has been
pursing economic reform policies for the past years, no
assurance can be given that the PRC government will
continue to purse such policies or that such policies
may not be significant.

Fair value estimation

Effective from 1 April 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that
are measured in the balance sheet at fair value, this
requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

—  Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

— Level 3 (lowest level): inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 March
2010.

30. I TH (&)

(b)

MERREEZBBEREE (&)

(4)

)

EEmE

AEENEELERATBENBOAL
RERMENEARTEEREMR
BAANEE - BETEBNEEE
SE-ERETRBERERE  AM
BEARBETERTSEEHETHR
BERE T EAEERBRBER-

AFEEZ G

H-_ZTTEAFHA—BE KEE
RNB BB RE LB (K
£5) [MBITAEIREEBRR
FEEFE AREAQTFEER
BTEEZ R TFEEFERE XN
T

- FEXR(ERRER) KR
R ESL R ENERET SR
B (REHE)

- FERKBRE-EBRAERE
ZHREIN ZEEHABE A
B AER (ARE
) (BVREER) -

- FZER(REER) %E
EHRABZBELIFREA
BRmI580E (A 8RN
%) e

TREIIAKBHBAEN —F—
FF=A=T-AUAFEEN

=

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
F—EX EZER HEZEX et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT BT BT
Asset
Trading securities BAEER 16,620 - - 16,620
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 {2 = F —FF = A=+ —HIF F&

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

31.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(5) Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year there was no significant transfer
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The carrying values less any allowance for impairment
of financial assets and of financial liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. Estimated discounted
cash flows at the current market interest rate are used
to determine fair value for other financial instruments
(i.e. Level 3 — lowest level).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debit.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debts-to-total
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided
by total adjusted capital. Net debts include current liabilities
and non-current liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total
adjusted capital includes net debts and total equity as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet. The Group’s policy is to keep
the net debts-to-total adjusted capital at a reasonable level.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
either internally or externally imposed capital requirements.

30. BT R (&)

(b) HMBEAKBEEZBEERBE(£)

(5) R FEEZE (F)

FR F-EREAF_ERIAZ
R mERER -

R—FRIP M BEERMBA
Bz REEHRE AR ERERE
BENVERE BEEEMUBET
A2 R ERFRBIRBITHSHN
KABE 2 AFMARERE (BF
ZER-—REER) -

31. EXEBRER

AEENEAEERBR RREAEERE
BREEBBBLE LN ARBRRER
O] - [FIRS SR A B AR R as - W
FRENERRBIUREE AR -

RERAHBEARE AREERAER
PRS2 BS - SRERRA TRR - BITH AR
FHEEEARDER -

AEBREBFRECAEENERILXRE
REN - ZLLRUEBFEGALHBREAR
REE BB FEEERDARRIERD
BERREMNERBAESER -EHAEEXR
HER2IRNGREERBRR ZERFENR
BDRF AREZBRERRFBERFHRY
REBRERNBRELENEEKF-

AR E R EAERIE QR BAX ARSI
K H)E AR E R B
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32. LITIGATION 32. F{Fah

Pending litigation

On 10 July 2006, a legal action for damages of approximately
HK$76,862,000 for breach of agreements was brought up by
four independent third parties (the “Plaintiffs”), who were the
previous minority interests holders of a former subsidiary of the
Company. The Company is the 1st defendant and Investsource
Limited (formerly known as Sun Television Cybernetworks
Company Limited) (“Investsource”), a former wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that was disposed of by the Company
in June 2004, is the 2nd defendant. It is alleged that the Plaintiffs,
the Company and Investsource entered into a provisional
agreement dated 11 July 2000 (the “First Agreement”) whereby:

— Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs the
60% equity interest in TV Viagens (Macau), S.A.R.L. (“TV
Viagens”);

— Upon signing the formal sale and purchase agreement and
completion of the acquisition transaction, the Company and
Investsource agreed to provide finance to TV Viagens for
any shortfall of operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and
for the services fees payable by TV Viagens; and

—  Upon signing the formal sale and purchase agreement and
completion of the acquisition transaction, Investsource
should obtain consent from the Plaintiffs and the Company
before any transfer of its interest in TV Viagens.

It is also alleged that after the revision of some terms and
conditions under the First Agreement, the Plaintiffs and
Investsource entered into the formal sale and purchase
agreement dated 8 August 2000 (the “Second Agreement”)
whereby:

— Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs the 51%
equity interest in TV Viagens, which was subsequently
acquired by Investsource during the year ended 31 March
2001 and disposed of during the year ended 31 March
2003; and

— Investsource agreed to provide finance to TV Viagens from
the date of completion of the acquisition transaction for any
shortfall of operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and for
the services fees payable by TV Viagens.

104 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Zx&E/5 ¢ (£ ) AR A &

1R AR

RZEERNFLATH WEBIYIE=FH
([R5 IR AR a5k B A 7 /AT 8
BaREA AN RERBESTEBRRNBEY
76,862,0007T e 37 c A AR AE — 1
ifmInvestsource Limited ( [Investsource | * A
fSun Television Cybernetworks Company
Limited * " A TR = ZZ M4 75 A H & KAl
ZEMBRAR) BE s EEBRS K
A7) KinvestsourceR —EEEFE+ A +—H
R ([E—mEl) Bt

— Investsourceld E AR EHEETV Viagens
(Macau), S.A.R.L. ([TV Viagens ] )60%
&4

— ZEIAEEHBZERTHKEERSHE
A& K Investsource[R EFL TV Viagens
FRAEER A ERRENREEMTV
Viagenstelt & & : &

— FIIFREERZRTERWERSHE -
InvestsourceZE A B iR H AT TV Viagens
ESATRERERAAGREE -

Eol4H  MIERT 5 — B ab o IR RAKH
1% - R & Kinvestsource® —ZEZZE A AN
BRI EXEEWR ([F-tmz])  Eit:

— Investsource[d E AR EHEETV Viagens
51%A%#E - InvestsourceH % 5 B E =
T F=ZA=+—HULEFERH=E
—EE=F=A=t+—HILFEKER
HEABEER &

— Investsourcelfl & B Wi R 5 5T Ak 8 5t
TV Viagens{E {a] &8 & ik 7~ 52 R & FE 1 AR
T E ATV ViagensiZth & 4 o
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32. LITIGATION (Continued) 32. FFER (&)

Pending litigation (Continued)

It is also alleged that in view of the failure by the Company and
Investsource to finance TV Viagens, TV Viagens is not financially
able to continue its business due to short of working capital and
therefore the shareholding of the Plaintiffs in TV Viagens becomes
valueless.

The Plaintiffs claim against the Company for damages of
approximately HK$76,862,000 or such an amount as the court
may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or other relief due to
the Company’s alleged breach of agreements to provide finance
to TV Viagens for its operational costs and for the services fees
payable by TV Viagens.

On 5 May 2010, an application for striking out the Plaintiffs’ claim
was made. The application was heard on 14 June 2010 and 13
July 2010. The striking out application can be determined by end
of September 2010.

With the advice of the Company’s external legal adviser, the
directors are of the opinion that the Company has no legal or
financial obligations to the Plaintiffs in that the First Agreement
was superseded by the Second Agreement and that the
Company was not bound by the Second Agreement. The
directors are of the opinion that the Company will strongly refute
and the Company intends to vigorously contest the allegations
and that the allegations are to be without merit and too remote
to be held against the Company. Based on legal advice after
application for striking out the Plaintiffs’ claim, the directors are
of the opinion that the Company has a very good chance of
successfully striking out the case. The directors believe that the
dispute can be settled without losses to be incurred by the Group
and the Company, and therefore no provision for losses in this
aspect has been made in these financial statements.

FHRNFR (F)

HEIrEH R AR R Kinvestsourcell £ &
TV ViagensiZft & 4 - TV ViagensH R & E &
SRR FHIEN NEECEHEER B
BHRERTV Viagens 2 IR L E (B E ©

RERARRAEZE R e WHEATV Viagens
MEERARBMNRESERHEESHERNIEB
25 1 2R 4 78 #576,862,0007T 2k F 324 B BB TE HY
HEE - HENE - BRRREMEE-

R-ZE-—ZFRAARR AREISMMERS
ZHRELHF - FRFFEN_Z—FF
NATOER-_Z-—ZTFLtA+=AKRA-
ERBERBAIR _Z—ZFNARELH
R o

BREARRINEERZERNER EFRK
ERF—HABE R MARFL
TRE_GHBAOR MARABEAHRE
AEEMEARAVBEE-EERR AR
A 2 N BRI AT B H R E R AR
R TR AR B R R R KR BEARK L -
REMERERERBRILIEZERL EF
RRARRBHAHERE EFHE A5HE
RARBBAAZEMIERERBRAGHS
& I E L EE M W E [
R
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions.

(@) Profit guarantee for Tidetime Future Optical Media
Technology Limited

Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 August 2004 entered
into between Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tide Time
Holdings”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
the Company, Tide Time Holdings issued to the Company
a guarantee whereby the total profit after tax of Tidetime
Future Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
was acquired from Tide Time Holdings by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2005, would not be
less than HK$22 million for two years commencing on 1
January 2005 to 31 December 2006 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). If Tidetime Future Optical was not able to meet
the Guaranteed Profit, Tide Time Holdings would pay the
Company a sum equivalent to the shortfall of the aggregate
of the actual profit after tax of Tidetime Future Optical
and the Guaranteed Profit as compensation. During the
year ended 31 March 2009, the Company received the
Guaranteed Profit of HK$14 million as compensation.

Tide Time Holdings was beneficially owned as to 70% by
Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen”), 5% by Ms. Ma Jianhua, spouse
of Mr. Chen, 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying (“Ms. Ma”), sister-
in-law of Mr. Chen, 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (former
Executive Director of the Company) and 10% by Mr. Man
Ming (former Executive Director of the Company). Mr. Chen
and Ms. Ma were directors of the Company.
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continuead)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales to a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2010, Shanghai New
Culture TV and Radio Making Co., Ltd (“Shanghai
New Culture”), a subsidiary of the Company, supplied
broadcasting and content production services to _t/&#T
XbEHEE RO BRAR ([F3X{bLEE]), the former
holding company of a minority shareholder of Shanghai New
Culture, amounting to HK$179,000 (2009: HK$711,000)
which was under similar terms as it traded with other
customers. In the opinion of the directors, the transactions
were carried out in the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

As at 31 March 2010, there was an outstanding amount
of HK$1,936,000 due to a related company (2009:
HK$4,181,000). The amount is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

Operating lease payment to a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company
paid operating lease payment of HK$314,000 to Sun
Satellite Broadcasting Company Limited (‘Sun Satellite
Broadcasting”). As at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009,
there was no outstanding balance due to Sun Satellite
Broadcasting from the Group.

Sun Satellite Broadcasting was controlled by Mr. Chen and
Ms. Ma, directors of the Company.

Guarantee given by a director of the Company

Mr. Pu Fuzhong has given a personal guarantee to the
extent of HK$8,000,000 in favour of a securities trading
company for securities trading facilities granted to China
Giant Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

33 EXRBEALRS (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

B—EREARHE

REBEE-_ZT—ZSF=-_A=1+—HIHF
B AREZHB AR LEH L ERE
BREEFRAR ([EEFHXE])E
BB b 2 D EUERRE 2 AT R
AR EBF X LEEEEARGERA
A ([F B ) e S £4179,000
T (ZEZ 4 B #711,0007T (K E
) )z EERE B EAER - H AR
HRUREMBRE 2R P IER - EER
B ZERSTIRBEELBREPE
T TAIESEERRKe

NR-ZB-TF=A=+—0 ENEE
A B 18 7R B 38 FUIE A8 1,936,000
T (T NG #B%4.181,0007T) < §
HeRAEEE SR RTERTEER
/Hﬂo

REARZRKEHES

REBEZE_ZTAF=A=+—HILF
& » 7" A & [A1Sun Satellite Broadcasting
Company Limited ([Sun Satellite
Broadcasting ] T & & H & B
314,000t - MZZE—TF=A=+—H
N—EEANF=A=+—H KEEYL
£ [fEf Sun Satellite Broadcasting 2 K (&

Sun Satellite BroadcastingJ3 17N A 7 E
EREERST T EH

RAF—REERHAZER
BEPARLEERRTAKEZ2EMHE
REAPBREBERARZEFEEME

[[—RE 5B E QAR EEAERES
8,000,0007T °
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

34.

(e)

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity

As at 31 March 2010, there was an outstanding amount
of HK$148,000 due from a jointly controlled entity. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 30(b) contains information about the assumptions and the
risk factors relating to financial instruments. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within next financial year are set out as follows:

(a) Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts

(b)

The Group provides allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of
the trade receivables and other receivables at each balance
sheet date. The impairment is based on the ageing of the
trade receivables and other receivables balances, the credit-
worthness of debtors and the historical write-off experience,
net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, additional allowance may be required.

Impairment loss on broadcasting programmes

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’s broadcasting programmes with reference
to all readily available information and current market
environment. Impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amounts is recognised in income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on broadcasting
programmes is required, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment, the estimated market value
of the assets and/or the present value of future cash flow
expected to be received. Impairment is recognised based
on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use.
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34. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

34. BEEHEFTRHE (F)

TEEEEMGFHEERER (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

BRELYHEE

(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets (c)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
In assessing the probability, both positive and negative
evidence is considered, including whether it is more
likely than not that the operations will have future taxable
profits over the period in which the deferred tax assets
are deductible or utilised. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax
asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, group relief,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
taxation and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

The Group uses all readily information including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs in
assessing the probability. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of future taxable profits may be higher or lower than
estimated at the balance sheet date, which would affect the
profit or loss in the future years.

B RS ANEBRELNRENREA
BE EQERBMENGZEERN
FIREERS R B SR B i M EHIRUR B A
HIBEEHBERT 77 THER R
AR FERAEEEETETAE
B BREEERIRAESAREEREER
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BELRBEBIVBEBM I RARKR -
Hi ANREZRTATE REBER
BRNRBREERDORNERLELHIA
BESRANESER fINEEHFE
ERVIRREZHE SBER HEHRE
REE LA BBEFHRBEBBRNSME R
ERAEMREER G B EEAERE

eREEEE B -

REF A BEMERY - AR BE(E BT Al &
"HER BRREAEREEENHR
RIFELMMGEE FRREREERAE
Belbth RRERR BN ER SR
FEERREREERZHESRE M
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35. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 35.

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007),
presentation of financial statements, certain comparative figures
have been adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation
and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2010. Further details of these
developments are disclosed in Note 2.

36. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO 36.

e F

RN EREE &5 ERE15 (2007F &8
Al —THBREZE2®R] BHLBRHAFD
1ERE  UNAAREFREZERTA AR—F
—TFEERERBEZRBRELRET It
EFRYE—FHBIIINM 2

EAREMZER RERRBTENZ

EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The HKICPA has issued the following standards, interpretations
and amendments which are not yet effective as of the date of
these financial statements and has not early adopted by the

Group:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part
of Improvements to HKFRSs
20087

Improvements to HKFRSs 20097
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010%
Related Party Disclosures”

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements/”
Classification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters®
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS
7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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36. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO 36.
EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations”

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum

(Amendment) Funding Requirement”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners(”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments®

W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

@ Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

©  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and
1 January 2011, as appropriate

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

©  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

©  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

©  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Directors of the Company are considering impact of the
application of the new and revised Standards, Amendments or
Interpretations and anticipate that such application will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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85T (&)

BAEY KRS ER Elhﬁ BEURND A
F25% (BFTA) ER AT H

EEMBREEN  EBAHO
F3% (K153])

EEMBREEN  BBIAG
F9%

B (ARMBERE REESBRZENRE?
REZEE)

—RBE14%
(ERTA)

A5 (BRHBHRE REBADRIEREEE
REZET)
—REFITH

A5 (BBHBERE NRATAHEVKARO
REZET)
—REF19%

0 B-FEAFLHA-HEBFELUEER
@ BIREARE —FEANF+HA—HEFE
R-_EBE—FF—H—HAEFELUELEN
O BARE-FFEFLA-HEFEEL-F
——F—H - AEFELLEEN
@ A-FE-FF—A-HEFELUEER
O A-F-FFE_H-HEFELUEER
O H-F-FFEL A HEFELUEER
0 BT —F A HEBFELUEER
© H-F—=F—H-HEFELUEER

AD ) EE R E RS A RIS AT
I (5T AN SR AR R AR A R MR T AR
ZRB S R ARRRSHT R
TER B ARRBTEYEANGRE
BREATE-

Annual Report 2010 F ik 111



Five-Year Financial Summary

TEHBERE

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERFE 2Tt F ZTZEN\F ZTTNEF ZBE-ZF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT  EEFor  EEFIT  EB¥TFxT
TURNOVER B
Continuing operations BHEKESER 51,132 32,050 50,686 27,988 74,750
Discontinued operations ) %%Jt%ﬁk = = = = -
51,132 32,050 50,686 27,988 74,750
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) SRR (EiE)
Continuing operations FELEER (36,510) (67,017) (722) 1,937 8,758
Discontinued operations BRI = = = = -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BRBADER, (FB)

TAXATION (36,510) (67,017) (722) 1,937 8,758
TAXATION #E - = = = (1,185)
PROFIT/(LOSS) REERHN,(FE)

FOR THE YEAR (36,510) (67,017) (722) 1,937 7,573
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEqh:

EQUITY HOLDERS EATEREFEA

OF THE COMPANY (36,510) (67,017) (722) 1,937 7,573
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER = = = = -
(36,510) (67,017) (722) 1,937 7,573
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREBE
At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EBEEXFE —BTF —TT)N\F —TTNF ZB-BF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT  JEMFr BT BT E¥Frn
TOTAL ASSETS WEE 143,079 54,001 66,192 55,807 59,416
TOTAL LIABILITIES wme s (75,774) (53,786) (62,681) (23,103) (19,353)
67,305 215 3,511 32,704 40,063
TOTAL EQUITY NN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO HE AEM

EQUITY HOLDERS A48 58

OF THE COMPANY 67,305 215 3,511 32,704 40,063
MINORITY INTERESTS LY R RER - - - - -

67,305 215 3,511 32,704 40,063
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